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MEETING OF THE ADVISORY COMMITTEE
ON CHILD SUPPORT GUIDELINES AND ENFORCEMENT
FOR THE STATE OF ALABAMA
THURSDAY, AUGUST 12, 2021
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THE ADVISORY COMMITTEE ON CHILD SUPPORT
GUIDELINES AND ENF'ORCEMENT MEETING was held before
Jeana S. Boggs, Certified Court Reporter and
Commissioner for the State of Alabama at Large, via
Virtual videoconference, Montgomery, Alabama,
commencing at 10:00 A.M., Thursday, August 12th,

2021.
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MS. DAVIS: Well, first, I want
to welcome everybody to the Advisory
Committee on Child Support Guidelines and
Enforcement. I appreciate everyone
taking time out of their schedule to join
us for this very important Committee. I
want to recognize, as we always do, our
Court Reporter Jeana Boggs.

Jeana, if you would wave so
everybody will see you. And remind
everybody to don't do as I do, but do as
I say which is to, if you would, when you
speak if you would identify yourself,
that would help Ms. Boggs although she
has gotten pretty good about identifying
voices. But particularly if you are not
visible, if you are calling in by phone,
it would be difficult for her to do that.

Again, we are a number—-oriented
Committee. $So, if you would assist her
and all of us, if you would use for
example, three dollars and ninety-five

cents as opposed to three ninety-five,
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that sort of thing. The same way with
percentages.

So, Bob, would you call the roll
for our Committee members and then for
our public?

MR. MADDOX: Yes, ma'am. So,
once I call your name just like in
previous meetings, Jjust say here or
present to acknowledge your attendance.

Honorable Sarah Stewart?

(No response) .

MR. MADDOX: I have not seen her

on today. Honorable Matt Fridy?
(No response) .

MR. MADDOX: Honorable Don
McMillan? He emailed Professor Davis and
I that he had a trial, I believe, going
on this morning. So, I don't believe he
will be able to join us. He might later.

Honorable Michael Sherman?

(No response) .
MR. MADDOX: Honorable Aubrey

Ford?
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HON. FORD: Here.
MR. MADDOX: Thank you, Judge.
Honorable Julie Palmer?
(No response) .
MR. MADDOX: Honorable Karen Dunn
Burks?
(No response) .
MR. MADDOX: We know Professor
Davis is on. She Jjust spoke. She's
present. Amanda Cox?
MS. COX: Here.
MR. MADDOX: Thank you. Shirlee
Beach?
MS. BEACH: Here.
MR. MADDOX: Thank you. Drew
Whitmire?
(No response) .
MR. MADDOX: Greg Starkey?
(No response) .
MR. MADDOX: Jennifer Bush?
MS. BUSH: Present.
MR. MADDOX: Thank you, Jennifer.

Joan Marie Sullivan?
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(No response) .

MR. MADDOX: Joan Marie Sullivan,
she's an attorney representing the family
law section. I believe she said she had
a Zoom hearing, so she may not be able to
join us. Jim Jeffries?

(No response) .

MR. MADDOX: Katie Steinwinder?

MS. STEINWINDER: Present.

MR. MADDOX: Thank you. Lathesia
McClenney?

(No response) .

MR. MADDOX: I have not seen her
yet. Melody Baldwin?

MS. BALDWIN: Present.

MR. MADDOX: Thank you.

Professor Brian Gray?

PROFESSOR GRAY: I am here, Bob.

MR. MADDOX: Thank you. Stephen
Arnold?

(No response) .
MR. MADDOX: Rachel King?

MS. KING: I am here.
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MR. MADDOX: Thank you. Mallory
Hall?

MS. HALL: I am here. Morning.

MR. MADDOX: Morning. Ms. Boggs
is on as the Court Reporter. She's been
acknowledged as being present.

Honorable Julie Weller?

(No response) .

MR. MADDOX: I have not seen her
yet. Stephanie Blackburn?

MS. BLACKBURN: I am here.

MR. MADDOX: Thank you. Nathan
Wilson?

MR. WILSON: I am here, Bob.

MR. MADDOX: Thank you, Nathan.
Dr. Venohr is present —-

DR. VENOHR: Hi.

MR. MADDOX: -- who is a part of
the Center for Policy Research. Good
morning.

And from the public, we have
Clifford Smith.

MR. MADDOX: Here.

Boggs Reporting & Video LLC
800.397.5590/www.boggsreporters.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

10

MR. MADDOX: Thank you. Would
you like to speak at the end, Cliff?

MR. MADDOX: No, thank you.

MR. MADDOX: All right. Tiffany
Gates?

MS. GATES: Here.

MR. MADDOX: Would you like to
speak at the end?

MS. GATES: No, sir.

MR. MADDOX: Thank you. And Lisa
Clark?

MS. CLARK: Here.

MR. MADDOX: Would you like to
speak?

MS. CLARK: No, sir.

MR. MADDOX: All right. Thank
you. That's it, Penny.

MS. DAVIS: All right. Thank you
for going through that process.

Stephanie, do we have a quorum at
this point?

MS. BLACKBURN: We do not. We

have two people short.

Boggs Reporting & Video LLC
800.397.5590/www.boggsreporters.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

11

MS. DAVIS: Okay. So, two
people. Okay. If you would, if we get a
quorum — and I know some people had some
last-minute things that came up —— if you
would in an appropriate time where you
can break in, let us know that so we
would be aware that we can make some
decisions.

And would you also remind
everyone about our authorization relating
to videoconferencing and also the
extension of that, if you would.

MS. BLACKBURN: Yes. We just got
—— the Court just entered an order
extending the authorization to do
videoconference for the Committee through
March 31st of '22. So, we are good to
go. With the way that COVID and the
Delta variant has hit us, the Court
thought it would be a good time to extend
it.

MS. DAVIS: Yeah. And we

certainly appreciate their mindfulness of
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the safety of the Committee members and
also the public for sure. I think I saw
that Matt Fridy has joined us; is that
correct?

HON. FRIDY: Yes. That's
correct. Good morning.

MS. DAVIS: Thank you. Good
morning.

Bob, would you give us the
information regarding the notice to the
media?

MR. MADDOX: Yes, ma'am. Just
like previous meetings, notice to the
media was given by email from Scott
Hoyem, Public Information Officer in the
Administrative Office of the Courts via
email dated July 12, 2021. It provided
that members of the public could provide
written comments to the Committee by last
Wednesday, August 4th. And it also
provided that they could join by this
Zoom meeting if they registered by

Tuesday, August 10th.
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As of today, I have not received
any written comments and suggestions.
Stephanie, did you receive any from the
Clerk's Office?

MS. BLACKBURN: We have not.

MR. MADDOX: Okay. Thank you.

MS. DAVIS: Thank you, Bob. We
always appreciate it when our members of
the public can participate by Zoom or in
person, and we certainly welcome any
written comments in the future too.

At this point, each of you have
had the opportunity to look at the
transcripts. Are there any changes or
corrections?

(No response) .
MS. DAVIS: Hearing none, number

one, that's certainly a tribute to our

Court Reporter's good note-taking skills.

We appreciate that.
Do I hear a motion from a
Committee member for approval of the

transcript?
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MS. KING: This is Rachel King.

I'll so move.

MS. DAVIS: Thank you. Do I hear

a second?
MS. BALDWIN: This is Melody
Baldwin. I will second.
MS. DAVIS: Thank you, Melody.
So, we have a motion and a second. All
in favor, if you would —— if you are
visible, raise your hand, or if you are
computer savvy and can raise your hand
without visualization, then that's fine
too.
(Committee members raising
hands.)
MS. DAVIS: Okay. Thank you.
Anyone who cannot visually respond by
hand, if you would like to un-mute
yourself and respond verbally.
HON. FORD: I don't know if you
saw my hand, but I support it.
MS. DAVIS: Thank you, Judge

Ford.
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MS. STEINWINDER: Say it again,
Penny. I did an electronic hand raise.

MS. DAVIS: Yeah, I saw that.
Thank you. I am always impressed when
people can do that. So, thank you very
much.

Anybody that is opposed to it, if
you will raise your hand physically or
electronically or un-mute and speak
opposition.

(No response) .

MS. DAVIS: Okay. Katie's hand
is still up, but I'm assuming that's Jjust
because it's still up.

Okay. Well, the motion does
carry unanimously. Thank you.

So, at this point, unless there
are any other housekeeping chores, then
we want to continue with our discussion
on the low—income adjustment worksheet
and just update the schedule in general.
Does anybody have any comments before we

turn the program over to Dr. Venohr?
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(No response) .

MS. DAVIS: Okay. Jane, would
you lead us through our discussion?

DR. VENOHR: Sure. Thank you,
Penny.

MS. DAVIS: Thank you.

DR. VENOHR: So, I am referring
to the memo dated August 2nd. And before
plunging into the low-income adjustment,
the self-support reserve, we talked about
alternative terms for defendant and
plaintiff. And so, you're going to see
that, a matrix of that.

And this is something that you
don't necessarily have to address now.
But if you are going down the road of
shared parenting time, and it looks like
you are going to have to change some of
your language to adopt the self-support
reserve or a low—income adjustment, so
it's just good to think about it as
you're changing the language, what terms

to use. And there's no perfect term.
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You know, you can look at this on your
own.

And on one hand, I noticed too 1is
that a lot of states have multiple
definitions like Tennessee. You know,
they sometimes use "obligor" or
"caretaker" instead of "obligee." But I
tried to pull states that were
neighboring states or those states that I
know that have really given thought to
it, you know, for instance, like Oregon.
I thought Oregon, if you scroll down to
the next page, I thought this was kind of
creative is on the worksheet in Oregon,
they let the parent decide what their
relationship is to the child or whomever
is completing the worksheet. You know it
might not always be the parent. It
probably rarely is the parent, as I think
about it, that is completing the form.

But, anyway, so, any questions on
that before I plunge into the worksheet?

Any comments or thoughts? Reactions?
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(No response) .

DR. VENOHR: Okay. Well, hearing
none, I am going to move on to page three
which is where we left it is —— we are
talking about just how this worksheet
works. And I had a —— last time I had a
bunch of examples that had additional
expenses such as childcare, healthcare
and those things. And it obscured the
simple calculation that this can be.

And what this does is it shows an
example where there's no self-support
reserve applied. And so, we have —— This
information on the top mimics your
existing worksheet. If I don't have the
word "new" in front of the line, then it
comes right out of your existing
worksheet.

So, you will see that lines one
through four mimic your existing
worksheet. And then what's different is
that on line five we multiply each

parent's share by their pro rata of share
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of income. So, you don't do that now.
And the reason that we are doing that on
the new line five is that when we —— the
Committee is favoring not by official
vote but favoring applying the
self-support reserve just to the basic
obligation, not to childcare or health
insurance or any of those add-ons even
though those are very, very infrequent in
low—income cases.

You know, if the child is really
low income, chances are they might be
eligible for Medicaid or CHIP. 1If the
noncustodial parent is very low income,
he or she probably works for an employer
that doesn't get health insurance
benefits.

And then the childcare expenses,
they usually occur at higher incomes.
And part of it is that, you know, with
low incomes, they might be getting
childcare subsidies through TANF or

through Title 20, CCAP, the childcare
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subsidy program. I forgot what it stands
for. So, it is not very common.

So — but still, we addressed it
adequately in that cluster that says
consideration of additional expenses, and
we had to do it a little bit differently
Just to accommodate that. The results
are going to be the same, but
mathematically, we did a little algebra
differently to accommodate, that the
self-support reserve is only going to be
applied to the basic schedule amount.

So, then, if you go to the third
cluster where it says "Preliminary Child
Support Order," the new line 12, so in
this case, you will see that the
defendant is probably the one going to
owe child support —— or the one. And we
Just bring his pro rata share of the
obligation down.

And then the new line 17 is where
the Court would make a decision —— or

there's a —— I shouldn't say the Court
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makes the decision. It's the obligated
parent's monthly adjusted gross income
less than $2,350. And this is at the
request that it not be calculated for
every case. So, you know, you don't need
to calculate it if it's —— 1if it's more
than that, then obviously the SSR
wouldn't apply. And I use $2,350 for the
threshold because that's the threshold
for six children. If we had —— We could
change it so it could be a different
dollar amount for each number of
children. And that would lower it.

So, and then the new —— because
that's self-support reserve applies to
higher income the more children the
parent has.

And the new line 14 is where the
Jjudge gets to make the decision. And
here is where the judge could think of ——
use the Arizona provision. We talked
about how states —— I showed you some

examples in both the May and June
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memorandum of languages where states say,
look, we are only going to apply the
self-support reserve if the custodial
parent has sufficient income in their
household. And New Jersey has a
threshold. They use 105% of the poverty.
And Arizona just says that discretion on
the Court. The Court can consider it.

So, this is at the point where
there's judicial discretion. And it is
not a deviation. It's just some
discretion. Arizona does not count it as
a deviation. So, here ——

MS. DAVIS: Can I interrupt here
for a minute, Jane?

DR. VENOHR: Sure.

MS. DAVIS: That was my first
question was, where it says it's
appropriate to conduct a self-support
reserve test. I thought —— and I notice
it's just examples, that it's a little
confusing because we know it's the

Court's discretion, but the person
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filling this form out wouldn't know that.
And so, I think we need to word it a
little bit different.

But I also had a thought, which
may or may not be a good thought is, I am
concerned about the judges having to look
at each case on the self-support reserve
when it's discretionary. And I was
wondering if any state does something
like where a person can ask for the Court
to consider applying a self-support
reserve and they have to ask for it in
order for it to be considered, and then
we could develop a form that person would
have to complete and submit to the Court
if they are requesting it.

And the reason I was thinking
about that, at some point earlier in our
conversation, somebody said there's a lot
of default cases where the party doesn't
even show up, and they are given ——
generally, the judges will order a ——

will make an assumption and at least put
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in the form the minimum wage, which I
think is $7.25 or $7.50 now an hour wage
which may change; but they put that in.
And so that would relieve the Court from
having to do, you know, all the
calculations or having to have a hearing
on whether to have it as discretion if it
would only be available if requested by
the parties.

Does anybody do something like
that? There's probably a flaw somewhere
in my thought process.

DR. VENOHR: No, the short answer
is, yes. Wisconsin does it that way.
They actually request —— They say that
the low-income adjustment is not
applicable unless he comes to the
hearing, he or she comes to the hearing.
And they have to essentially ask for it.
So, it doesn't apply in defaults.

So, who is completing this form?

MS. DAVIS: Well, you know, if

you have an attorney, then obviously an
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attorney is involved in it. But in a lot
of cases, it is not attorneys. It's the
individual parents.

DR. VENOHR: How about in the
IV-D world, which is where there are a
lot of defaults and low—-income cases?

MS. BEACH: This is Shirley
Beach. The child support workers are
completing them for presentation to the
Court.

DR. VENOHR: You know, I will
have to check. I don't think it's on the
Wisconsin form, but I will check it on
break. But that might be an easy
solution to it. And I actually like the
idea of them having to come to court to
get the —— or to appear or respond to get
the self-support reserve adjustment. I
mean, theoretically, it sounds like an
incentive for them to send back their
information and to participate. I mean,
you know, the data says that

participation leads to payment.
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But I have to say that, in
Wisconsin, what I have heard is that the
application of that low income adjustment
is so variable from court to court. And
it really hasn't been an incentive for
them to appear. But it also —— Wisconsin
is a much more —— they are not a
state-administered program. They are a
county—administered IV-D program.

So, I imagine the workers are
going to —— it's going to vary from
county what information they provide to
the obligated parent. And the packets
that they send out, you know, with the
complaint for child support, will
probably vary from county to county.

I am going to stop there and see
if there is any comment. I think this is
a good time to brainstorm, particularly
with the IV-D, what would work with
regard to that.

HON. FORD: Judge Ford here. The

only issue I have —— or one of the issues
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I have, particularly the IV-D realm, is
the fact that many of your obligors are
not very sophisticated. Most of the time
you can send out a packet, and they have
never read the packet. They come to
court generally trying to seek an
explanation of what they have been sent.

So, I am not certain if it's
going to decrease someone's obligation as
far as getting that information to the
Court or whether or not it's going to
increase it. So, there's something —-
There has to be some way you could deal
with the lack of sophistication of many
of your defendants.

DR. VENOHR: I think that's a
really, really good point and a valid
point. And I haven't seen this for
application of the low—income adjustment,
but I have seen it for —— there's this —
There was a demonstration project that
the Federal Office of Child Support on

behaviorally informed modifications to
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child support and modifications and just
the way they did business. And one of
the issues that is recognized is that a
lot of our complaints —— and I am Jjust
talking in general in the IV-D world —-
you know, it's a bunch of legalese, and
people don't understand it.

And so, what this project did was
experiment with trying to make it
simplified. They, you know, put it in
eight—-grade language in big font. And
they even put refrigerator magnets —-
gave them refrigerator magnets with the
notice and with a date of their scheduled
hearing and a big, you know, phone number
to call for a pre-conference hearing.
Because the idea was to get them into the
child support office to stipulate before
the court date.

And this particular project was
in Georgia, and it was four counties.
Most of them were —— maybe it was three

or four counties. Two of them were in
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the Atlanta area, and then there was
Macon, which was Jjust an hour or so out
of Atlanta.

And what they found was that, by
making that notice different, they had an
eight percentage point increase in those
that were coming to the office to
stipulate. I mean, granted this was
before COVID, and I don't know if they
are doing Zoom pre—conference hearings.

But your point about them —— you
know, apparent understanding it is very
valid. And I think it's a bigger point
than beyond this form, but it really ——
it speaks to the equity of applying that
adjustment.

And I am going to stop there to
see what other comments there are.

MS. DAVIS: Could any of the
other judges comment about whether having
a discretionary would be a burden on the
Court, or is that even a concern that we

need to address?
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(No response) .

MS. DAVIS: Any attorneys want to
comment on the discretionary aspect?

MS. BAIDWIN: Penny, I just have
a question. This is Melody Baldwin, by
the way.

If the point of putting it in the
worksheet was so that it could apply to
both parents, what circumstances might
make it inappropriate to apply?

MS. DAVIS: To both parties or to
one party?

MS. BALDWIN: Well, on line 14,
are we considering it whether it's
appropriate for just the obligor or just
the obligee or both or —-

MS. DAVIS: I think part of the
thought process and, you know, being able
to apply it to both parties is that you
may have joint custody. So, both parties
would be not necessarily —— you really
won't know you know which one would be

the obligor or obligee in terms of the —
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you know, if they have equal custody. I
guess the example that comes to my mind
is if you have, say, two parties that
their incomes are both minimum-waged
incomes, but one of them is perhaps
living with their parents or maybe they
have a job that provides them with room
and board, or something like that, then I
think if I was the judge, I might think
they don't really need the self-support
reserve; whereas, the other party might
even if it's the obligee.

So, I would personally favor
either the obligor or the obligee being
able to have the Court consider
self-support reserve if they fit into
that economic category. And I think the
Jjudge would probably also consider if one
parent is getting all the child credit —-
you know how the tax structure is X
amount of dollars. I think Judge Palmer
had mentioned that that's being raised

recently in her cases. Does that help,
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Melody?

MS. BALDWIN: Yes, ma'am, it
does.

DR. VENOHR: You know, one thing
I am looking at and thinking about based
on this discussion is maybe what we do is
move that line 14 down. The disadvantage
of putting it at the end so that way —-—
the child support worker unfortunately ——
and this is the downside of this. They
are going to have to calculate it with
and without the self-support reserve.

So, they would fill out that
center thing where it says preliminary
child support order, and then they would
fill out the self-support reserve and
then, at the end, would be the line that
says 1s 1t appropriate to apply this.
Now, who's going to make that decision?
Well, the judge is, but then what
happened ——- what happened is that the
IV-D worker, the child support worker

would do the calculation. There would be
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an amount with the self-support reserve
and without. Is there something in your
process that would make it more
difficult? You know, does the attorney
have to look at it? And that means that
the judge is going to have to look at it
and look and see, okay, well, she only
has $1,000 in her house, or he is living
with his parents.

I mean, that creates a new burden
just to consider those circumstances.
You know, and that's a problem with
making it discretionary. It's a good
thing, but it's also a bad thing.

MS. BALDWIN: If you —— I also
looked at the tables at the end where you
looked at the actual people that were
paying on this lower end and what they
were getting. It's almost —— Nobody is
getting anything anyway.

And so, it might be simple just
to apply the self-support reserve to

everybody, not make it discretionary
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since it is not going to really change
the dollars that people are actually
getting.

I don't know if that's a
reasonable alternative —— There are
numbers people can help us decide if
that's a reasonable possibility too.
Just put the self-support reserve —— just
make it instead of building it into the
schedule, building it into the form.

DR. VENOHR: Right. And that way
what you would do is you wouldn't have
that new line 14. And then, if their
income is less than $2,350 per month,
then you would have to do the line 16,
17, 18, and so forth.

MS. DAVIS: T guess the
self-support reserve, in that instance,
would apply to both parents equally
depending on income.

DR. VENOHR: Right.

MS. DAVIS: And so —— Right now

the existing one —— The obligor
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automatically gets it by the way it's
built into the child support amounts. So
you would keep the policy of having it
automatic as opposed to the discretion,
but it would just be automatic for either
party based on their income. I mean if
either party fell within whatever the
magical amount is, then they would be
entitled to that being considered.

DR. VENOHR: It certainly would
eliminate a lot of confusion.

MS. DAVIS: Did any state do
something like that?

DR. VENOHR: Oh, most states do
it that way. I mean, most states ——
let's see. I think there's about ten
states that have it in the worksheet now:
West Virginia, Pennsylvania, Arizona. I
would have to look at the list.

But, yeah, to have that
adjustment discretionary —— Even though
Arizona in their language says it is a

discretionary adjustment and
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discretionary based on —— I would have to
pull out the exact language about
consideration of the custodial parents or
the children and whether they have
sufficient income in that household.

It's right on their worksheet. You know,
if it's put on the worksheet. And so,
it's applied.

I have never —— We just did
Arizona's case file review, and nobody
ever said, no, the self-support reserve
shouldn't apply in this case. But they
did exactly, you know, what you see on
the bottom of that worksheet, except they
apply it to both the childcare and the
health insurance too. So, their
worksheet is a little bit more simple.

Since you are only applying it to
the basic obligation, it creates more
lines than if we were to apply it to the
basic obligation plus the add-ons for
health insurance and childcare. So, I

hope everybody understands that, that
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application to the basic obligation alone
makes it necessary to have more lines
than it would if we applied it to
everything, you know, the health
insurance and the childcare.

So, that's a disadvantage to only
applying it to the basic obligation. The
advantage of applying it to only the
basic obligation is somebody has to pay
those expenses, childcare and health
insurance. So, there's a logic to
including it.

And then the counter—-argument is,
well, they are not getting it anyway, you
know, when you look at the payment data.

MS. DAVIS: So, those states that
are applying it on the worksheet, are
they applying it to both parties or Jjust
to the obligor? Joint custody to both
parties.

DR. VENOHR: Most of those
states, 1f they have joint custody, they

say that you can either get the joint
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custody adjustment or the self-support
reserve. You can't apply one on top of
each other, which I really recommend that
Alabama does.

But their worksheet shows that
applying to both parents, but they don't
have to fill it out for both parents if
they don't —— you know, sometimes —— In
some of the states, they have already
determined who is the paying parent, you
know, Jjust because of custody.

So, they will have something like
this where it shows a column for the
plaintiff and a column for the defendant,
but they only have to populate one column
to get it because they have already
decided the defendant is the obligated
parent because it's a sole custody.

Does that make sense?

MS. DAVIS: Yes, ma'am. Thank
you.

Does anybody else have any

questions, or we will proceed with the
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rest of the memo?
(No response) .

MS. DAVIS: Okay. Jane, if you
will, just go ahead and proceed.

DR. VENOHR: Okay. So, this just
shows a way that it is not applied. And
then, if you go to the next one on page
four, option 2(a), this applies it, the
self-support reserve. And I think the
message i1s, when you see those yes/no,
those red lines, those rows could be put
a bunch of different places. And I think
the discussion we are having right now
about who is going to fill out that form?
Is it going to be an attorney, or is it
going to be a child support worker? And
chances are with the low-income cases,
it's going to probably be a child support
worker.

I mean, a lot — I don't know how
many low income cases are outside the
IV-D world. I am trying to think if T

have an estimate from other states. But
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we do know that there are a lot of them
in the IV-D world.

So, I think that's a very
important point. I think Judge Ford
brought up a very, very important point
is, do parents understand this when they
get this. So, you know, we have several
options here. We can put it in the form
which puts the burden on the child
support worker. They have to put it —-—
We can put it somewhere else on the
calculation where the child support
worker is calculating it with the
self-support reserve and without a
self-support reserve, and the judge would
then have the ability to make the
decision.

A third option is what I was
talking about in Wisconsin where the
parent has to request it, and that was an
issue with whether they would have the
knowledge or understanding to request it.

So, this one has it applied. I
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have tried to keep it simple. It says to
skip to line 15. On line 13, it says to
skip to line 15 with the intent that the
person filling it out could stop right
after line 15, and they wouldn't have to
do this. But it's a little bit confusing
as you look at it. I have the final
order. You can have it on line 15, or
you can have it on line 23. And I put
this stuff —— the rows in there with the
comments, calculations and rebuttals
prepared by —— notice that it's in two
places: It's in this cluster, and it's
in the bottom cluster.

So, the short of it is there's an
infinite amount of ways to do this. And
I think what we are trying to figure it
out is a way that's practical for your
process and then also gets the
application of that self-support reserve
when it's really appropriate.

So, this is just one example.

And then if you go to Option B, I move
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things around.

MS. DAVIS: Let me ask you a
question on this one that you have. If
you did it right now, the defendant owes
$229. If you went ahead and calculated
the —— let's say there's some expenses,
so it winds up being $300. Right now are
we having the —— the self-support reserve
is only for the basic obligation, not for
the add-ons, right?

DR. VENOHR: Right.

MS. DAVIS: So, could we have a
new line six after five that's before you
get to the consideration of additional
expenses? And the new line six would be
the amount if the self-support reserve
applies and let that be automatic. And
so the figure there would just be the
$221.

DR. VENOHR: Right. And that's
how we started it. And, you know, the
problem with that, though, is then it

shows up in every order. So that ——

Boggs Reporting & Video LLC
800.397.5590/www.boggsreporters.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

43

MS. DAVIS: Either if it applies
—— I guess it would be a six and a seven.
If it applies, it would be six. If it
doesn't, then the seven would be what it
is without the application.

DR. VENOHR: Right. And I heard
that there were people that wanted to
have, like, an income so that new line 13
that says $2,350. So, if we move that
self-support reserve up to line six, then
it gets calculated in —— well, we
could —— actually we could —— I am
thinking out loud. Sorry.

We could move that line 13 just
below new line five, and that would be
when they have to figure out does the
self-support reserve —— is it even
applicable? Because you don't even have
to do the calculation if the income is
above $2,350 because they have sufficient
income. We know that just
mathematically.

And then you would have to move
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up all the other lines in the
self-support reserve before you would do
the additional expenses. And that —— you
know, it's —— you know, the math can be
worked out. We can put those —— The
bottom line is, we can move those
clusters —— each of the four clusters
that you see now: The monthly growth
income, the consideration of additional
expenses, and preliminary child support
order and the self-support reserve,
however you want, whatever sequence you
want. Mathematically it's not a problem.
It's just the expertise on the Committee
as far as what's going to be the easiest
and the least burdensome to the users.

MS. DAVIS: So, would the
difference be you would put it, say, at
the top group if it's applied in all
cases as opposed to discretionary? You
Just kind of leave it where it is?

DR. VENOHR: Right. If I put it

—— Well, discretionary doesn't matter.
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If it's discretionary or mandatory, these
are just those four clusters. We can put
them in whatever order you want.

The gross income has to come
first is the only thing. But it's
whether —— it's what's —— Again, it's
what's the most convenient to the user,
and it doesn't matter if it's
discretionary or not. I mean, I guess
where it matters if it's discretionary or
not is getting the information to the
Jjudge so he or she can see it. And then
the judge can make a quick decision based
on the circumstances of the case. And I
am not sure what sequence that needs to
be.

MS. DAVIS: Okay. Thank you.

DR. VENOHR: I feel like we are
spinning wheels here. I don't know what
is the best thing to do because it's Jjust
a complicated —— It Jjust makes it more
complicated. But I think it's a good

thing. I want to reiterate —— I have
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told you this before —- is that Vermont
has it on the form. They like it that
it's on the form. And I think it's wvery
positive that the parents see that it's
on the form being applied to both
parents, and they usually stipulate
something in between. I mean, it really
does happen.

And I don't know if you try to do
some pre—conference —— pre—hearing
settlements, you know, if the child
support workers do that. I don't know
your process well enough. But having it
on the form definitely facilitates that.

So, the option 2(b) is just a
little bit different where I put the —-
Let's see. Are we on the option 2(b)? I
think on page five, or five or six.
Yeah, here we are.

So, now, you see that line 14.
We still have —— I am sorry, line 13 is
that monthly gross income more than

$2,350. And line ten of that is so you
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don't have to calculate all the
self-support reserve if their income is
more than that, and you can ignore that.

So, if their income is greater
than that, then you can just do line 14,
and you are done. And then if we scroll
down, if their income is less than
$2,350, then here I got the discretionary
line at 15. This is where the Court
would have discretion. But we can move
that line 15 to, like, 20 or 21,
somewhere down there.

So, again, there's endless
options. It's just what sequence you
want to go with.

Let's just flip to line —— on
page seven. And this is the comparisons.
And all these —— Actually, it might be a
little bit further.

So, here the solid column, the
green, 1is existing Alabama. And we have
got four cases. And the first case we

have a pairs income is $1,257 a month,
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which is the full-time earnings at ——
federal minimum wage is $7.25 an hour.
The custodial parent has no income. And
then Case B, we have each parent's income
as $1,257, which is a very common
scenario.

And then Case C is an income of
$1,800. So, it's going to be closer to
what a new federal minimum wage might be,
or it might be close to what somebody
actually earns in Alabama given how much
what —— wages of pay there.

So, let me just look at something
real quick. I apologize. I forgot ——
yeah, so that's $10.38 an hour in the
$1,800 if they are working full time.

And then the last scenario is a
pair that's making $1,800 a month, so
that's $10.38 an hour. And the custodial
income is $1,257.

So, for each of them, we compared
the existing Alabama, which is the solid

green amount. And then that little
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yellow line is we went back to the case
file data to look at how much is being
paid. And the median amount was zero for
that first case. For the second case,
it's $23. For the third case, it's $54.
And for that last case, it was $115.

So, I think I did do some checks
on a couple of these scenarios, and there
was only less than 10% of the cases had
full payments. So, there are a few full
payments. I mean, I think that's the
shared concern is, if you reduce these
amounts, are you really getting less for
the family? And there's going to be a
very small case where —— Yes, I am not
going to sugarcoat it. It could decrease
the amount.

But for the other ones, what it
also means is that the agency —— they're
Just not collecting on these cases. And,
you know, and it is not ——- I mean,
because they are not collecting, and it's

probably partly because of his or her job
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situation and employment situation or
circumstances that they have to issue,
you know, all sorts of enforcement
remedies, they are spending a lot of time
on that case.

In Case B, which is the most
common, they are getting $23 a month on
average and expecting $250. And because
of that, they are having to do all of the
paperwork to, you know, maybe issue
driver's license suspension notices or
credit bureau reporting. They are having
to, you know, check and look to see on
the income withholding. They are
checking the quarterly wage data, and
most of these don't have quarterly wage
data.

So, by bringing those order
amounts down, you should be alleviating
some of the stuff that's happening at the
agency and freeing up their time to work
on cases that are payable. I mean, some

of these —— It's Jjust a plain labor
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market issue.

So, the third column, which is
kind of a light blue, is if we updated
the self-support reserve in the schedule.
And notice that these amounts are lower
in Case A. And this is just because when
we put it in the schedule, we attach it
to after-tax income. And so, it's — and
that after—-tax income varies depending
on —— as a percentage of gross income
depending on what their income level is.
You know, we have a work incentive of 80%
in the worksheet, and we can't have that
be a variable percentage, 70% and 90%,
and that's why it is not the same as the
other two ones which shows what the order
amount would be if the self-support
reserve was applied and not applied.

So, the last one is if it's
applied and then the second to the last
one is if that self-support reserve is
not applied in the worksheet. You can

see it doesn't make a difference, and
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that's just because the amount of the
self-support reserve, which we based on
the Federal Poverty Level multiplied by
an adjustment for Alabama's lower income,
which is the same thing; we are
recommending for the schedule, which is
$981 a month is the recommended
self-support reserve.

The current federal poverty is
$1,073. So, they are getting about $100
less than the self-support reserve to
account for the Alabama's lower cost of
living. But you can see that because
that self-support reserve is so low ——
you know, when you look at the difference
between $1,257 and $981, which is the
proposed self-support reserve, they can
pay it. You know, they can pay that $257
a month.

That was a lot of information.
Any comments on the graph?

(No response) .

DR. VENOHR: Okay. Let's move
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down to the two-child one. If you go
down this page.

And here I only put the amount of
payment if I had enough cases that were
—— 1f it wasn't less than ten cases. So,
the only scenario where I didn't have
less than ten cases was the second one
where both parents' income was $1,257 in
the case filed data. And on average,
they are only paying $26 a month for
those cases. And there weren't enough
cases that matched the other scenarios
involving two children for me to
calculate the median amount paid. And
partly that's because the majority of
orders are for one child in ALECS.

So, in this case scenario for two
children, you will see that if you were
to update, just use the same assumptions
you do now for existing schedule and put
it in the self-support reserve in the
schedule, the order amount would actually

go down from $333 for Case A to $137 a
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month. But because of those problems or
those issues with simplifying the gross
and the net, when we put it in the
worksheet, the order amount is actually
$202 a month.

And then if we look at it when
both parents have an income of $1,257,
and because the way that the low-income
adjustment applies, it doesn't apply in
that case because of the combined income,
and that was the whole issue with the
shaded area. The order amount actually
goes up to $360 because that low-income
adjustment only applies if the obligated
parent's income is in the shaded area.

So, here the order would go to
$360, and the worksheet amount would be
$360 if the self-support reserve wasn't
applied. But if the self-support reserve
was applied, then it would be $293. So,
there's a $77 adjustment there —— or a
$67 adjustment for a low-income parent.

And then you can see in the other two
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scenarios, 1t doesn't apply.

So, then, if we move on to the
third children, three children, which is
at the bottom, or the next page, I think.
Here for Case A you see that the
self-support reserve applying it in the
schedule would drop the schedule amount
for three children from $337 to $138, but
putting in the worksheet, it results in
$202. The parent has sufficient income
to make that amount.

And then, in Case B, you see the
problem again with using the combined
income. It takes you out of the area of
the self-support reserve. And, again, I
didn't calculate what was actually paid.

So, the short of this all is
that, you know, we might be over—-thinking
it in the sense of —— Who knows what is
happening in these families? 1It's
complex. It's beyond the realm of child
support, but they are not getting full

child support, so, in general.
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So, even though, you know, the
intentions are good as far as what to do
with the self-support reserve; and as an
issue of fairness, it makes sense to
update it. If you are going to update
the schedule, you should update the
self-support reserve. It makes the child
support guidelines more credible.

Putting it in the worksheet also makes it
more credible. It shows that you are,
indeed, considering the ability to pay.
Having it on a line where it shows it can
be applied to either parent does increase
the credibility and the visibility. But
at the end day, it is not making a big
deal on the order amounts. I mean, it
might be for this Case A and this Case B,
particularly if there are a lot of
children, but there aren't that many
cases in Alabama.

Can you scroll back up to the one
child? Those are going to be the most

common cases is the one child amounts.
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And so, it might feel like you
are decreasing the order amounts and
affecting families, but, you know, when
it's —— child support isn't motivating
them to work, or some of them probably
can't work. You know, we don't know what
the situation is that's causing that $23
a month payment on average.

But if you look at that Case B,
you're only decreasing the order to $237.
That's $23 a month decrease. And you can
put it in the schedule. You can put it
in the worksheet, and we can move around
the lines. 1It's probably not going to
change that $23.

So, I am going to stop there. I
talked way too much. And, you know, I
really want to — I think we are at a
point where we need to hear what you want
to do and just kind of do it. I mean, we
are never going to come up with a perfect
solution.

MS. COX: Jane, this is Amanda
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Cox. I do have a comment.

I think after seeing this —— You
know, initially I was on a team to put it
in the worksheet, and now in the past
probably two or three meetings, I have
kind of moved over to wanting to put it
in the schedule. I think that it was
already in the schedule before. I Jjust
think that we are complicating the
worksheet for Jjust a few cases. I just
think that keeping it in the schedule ——
and if we wanted to put in the Committee
comments that we have updated it and the
self-support is in the schedule just to
make sure that the people know that it's
there. But I just think we are
complicating the worksheet where it is
not really making a difference. And it
was already in the schedule before. I
Just think that it makes the most sense,
in my opinion.

HON. FORD: This is Judge Ford.

I would echo the comments of Amanda. I
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believe that we should try to make this
process as simple as possible,
particularly in the IV-D realm where
we're not dealing with people who are
very sophisticated, and most of the time
they are not represented by counsel.

So, generally they are looking to
the child support worker or even the
Court to find some equitable situation
for their circumstances.

So, if we Jjust keep it in the
schedule as we have done in the past, I
think that's the most equitable. Many
times in the IV-D realm anyway that the
incomes are rather fluid. Someone maybe
employed today and not employed next
week. And so, it goes through a lot of
fluid circumstances anyway.

So, I would agree with Amanda
that we just keep it within the schedule
as we have it now.

DR. VENOHR: I have two comments

to that. One is, I really like Amanda's
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suggestion to put it in the rules to make
it explicit. That's a problem now where
—— Well, actually, it isn't a problem. I
am thinking of another state. Sorry.

But to make it explicit that it's
in there, I don't —— and to name the
amount, I think that would be a good
thing.

And the second thing is, I know
that Professor Davis has been concerned
about, well, if we are going to go down
the path of figuring out a shared
parenting time adjustment, how does this
interact? You don't want to just apply
it to one parent. And what I would
recommend is if you keep it in the
schedule is to say that the shared
parenting time adjustment doesn't apply
to that shaded area of the schedule which
denotes where the self-support reserve
would apply.

So, that would be the simple

solution is that if you adopt it to say
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you can only apply this shared parenting
adjustment if the parent's incomes is not
in the shaded area.

MS. DAVIS: Bob, can we switch to
the Brady bunch view, and maybe everybody
can see everybody if they want to. We
can tell if someone wants to un-mute and
speak.

So, what I hear you are saying,
Jane, if we go back to putting it in the
schedule, it doesn't preclude us from
looking at joint custody arrangements
that are shared custody, that are
virtually within 40% to 50% of each one
parent and custody. Thank you.

DR. VENOHR: Yes, for Jeana's
benefit.

MS. DAVIS: Okay. Additional
comments or questions?

(No response.)

MS. DAVIS: We have a couple of

people that are un—-muted, so I don't know

if you wanted to speak. Jennifer, you
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are one of the people that I see is
un—-muted. Do you have some comments?

MS. BUSH: I do not have any
comments except to agree with Judge Ford.

MS. DAVIS: Okay. And did we
ever identify the 8700 person, telephone
number 1-256-301-8700.

MR. MADDOX: That's Shirlee
Beach.

MS. BEACH: That's me. I am just
on there twice.

MS. DAVIS: Okay. That's fine.
You are un—-muted. Did you have anything
to add?

MS. BEACH: Oh, no, ma'am. Thank
you.

MS. DAVIS: Okay. Thank you.
Anyone else have any comments?

(No response) .

MS. DAVIS: It looks like the
direction is now swinging back towards
putting it into the schedule. Just for

clarification, I want to make sure. I
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think when Judge Fridy joined us, that
left us still one member short for a
quorum; is that true, Stephanie?

MS. BLACKBURN: That's right. We
are still lacking one person.

MS. DAVIS: Okay. Well, I think
based on what we have done in the past,
let's take a sort of a straw vote again,
not a binding vote since this is not a
majority, to give Dr. Venohr some
direction.

So, at this point, do we have a
motion by someone regarding putting the
self-support reserve back into the
schedule versus putting it in the
worksheet?

MS. COX: I will do it, Professor
Davis.

MS. DAVIS: Thank you. Do I have
a second?

MS. KING: I will second it.
Rachel King.

MS. DAVIS: Thank you, Rachel. I
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guess we will open it up for any

discussion, any additional discussion,

and then we will have a vote. So, any

additional discussion before we vote?
(No response) .

MS. DAVIS: All right. All in
favor of putting the self-support reserve
back into the form ——- excuse me, into the
schedule rather into the worksheet, if
you would, raise your hand first if
you're visible, okay, or raise it
electronically like Katie did. Thank
you. Thank you. All right.

Anybody —— excuse me. If you
cannot speak, if you cannot vote visually
or with your electronic hand, if you
would like to un-mute and vote verbally,
if you would, do that at this time.

(No response) .

MS. DAVIS: Okay. Anyone in
opposition, if you would, raise your
hand.

(Committee member raising
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electronic hand) .

MS. DAVIS: Okay. I see at least
one.

Those who are working
electronically, vote no.

(Committee members raising
electronic hand) .

MS. DAVIS: Okay. I see a couple
of hands. No.

All right. Those who cannot vote
in person or electronically, if you would
—— and you are wanting to speak verbally
—— 1f you would do so now by un-muting.

(No response) .

MS. DAVIS: Okay. Well, again,
it's not a majority of the people
present, although it seems to be tilting,
Jane, towards putting it in again. So,
we still don't have a quorum. So, I
guess, Jane, at this point, if you will,
on the schedule, provide us a set of
schedules with it in and a set without.

I don't know another way to do it at this
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point since we don't have a quorum.

DR. VENOHR: Well, the good news
is I already have.

MS. DAVIS: Well, I am not
surprised. You're always ahead of the
game.

Okay. So, any other comments or
questions? Anyone that voted one way or
the other, want to try to persuade your
group, the other group?

DR. VENOHR: I would like to hear
some of the reasons just because it
always helps me think about whether
there's another mathematical solution. I
mean, you know ——

MS. DAVIS: Would anyone who
voted — I don't want to put anyone on
the spot —— who voted have any comments
that you would like to give Jane that
might assist her or assist the group on
the decisions? Or if you just want to
think about it and maybe you could

write —— you know, if you want to do it

Boggs Reporting & Video LLC
800.397.5590/www.boggsreporters.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

677

in writing rather than oral if you think
your comments might take more time than
you want to do or if you want to organize
your thought process, then you can
certainly do that.

(No response) .

MS. DAVIS: Okay. I guess we
will go back to the memo, Bob. If you
will put that on the screen and the
comparisons, if you would like to go
through that with us, Jane.

DR. VENOHR: We are on page nine.
Let's just jump to the schedule. I think
the schedule comparisons have both the
in—and-out of the —— I am tongue-tied
today obviously. Oh, good, it is the
right direction. It is not the right
direction on my screen.

So, here, if you look at the
first column, that's the existing
schedule. And then the second column is,
we have updated it for the BR5 realign

for Alabama incomes and updated to

Boggs Reporting & Video LLC
800.397.5590/www.boggsreporters.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

68

June 2021 prices. And the price levels
for July just came out yesterday, and
there was a little built of inflation.
So, it would increase these maybe a
little bit, particularly at the high end,
maybe a dollar or so but probably would
not have an impact from the inflation
from June to July.

But, as you—all know, we are
having some inflation right now. And so,
that was one of the reasons that we
prepared this updated schedule was that
the last time you looked at, it was
earlier this year.

And so, I think we had January
price levels, and prices have been going
up. And it is not equal for all consumer
goods. And some of the things that have
been going up are used cars, food went up
most recently, and gasoline, as you know
from the gas pump.

And there's a lot of arguments

among economists whether that if this is
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Just some transitory, meaning then it's a
temporary sort of inflation that we are
experiencing just because we had so much
change with COVID, that some of our
supply chains have gotten tied up. You
know, for instance, you —— I'm sure you
all hear the issues with semiconductors
and chips, and so forth, and they are
predicting that those supply issues won't
be resolved until 2022, 2023.

So, there's some that are arguing
that inflation is here to stay. Usually
when we talk about inflation, when we
really see it, is when we see it in the
wages. The wages are just starting to
increase a little bit. But then I also
—— that boom that we experienced
post-COVID, it really hasn't happened
because of Delta —— or it has happened,
but Delta is kind of a setback. But they
are saying also that it's not that little
boom that we are experiencing right now

where you've seen the leisure and the
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industry go back to work. It's not going
to be sustained. It's probably going to
be plateaued.

So, the short of it is that I
think it's good to update to June 2021
prices. I am not so worried about
updating to July 2021 prices. If this
carries on for a while where you have to
wait for a quorum, I might do an update,
say, in September. I don't know when you
will have a quorum, but we can update
this again to the most current price
levels. But it's probably only going to
make a difference of about maybe a dollar
at the higher income because those basic
obligations are more and not any —— it's
negligible. 1It's probably not going to
move the needle, the very small ones.

So, again, the first column is
the existing schedule. The yellow—shaded
areas shows where it's been adjusted for
the self-support reserve. The next

column shows what it looks like using an
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$871 self-support reserve based on the
Federal Poverty Level in 2001 —— I mean,
2021, adjusted for Alabama incomes. And
you can see it phases out by an income of
$1,550 a month.

It also increases that minimum
order range. Instead of it only applying
$50 to $800 incomes and less for one
child, that $50 would go out all the way
out to $1,150, and that's because that
$1,150 — the net income is closer to
$900, and when we take that self-support
reserve, we adjust it based on net
income.

So, the self-support reserve is
almost $1,000. It's $981. So, if their
net income is below $981, then we use
that $50 order amount. That's exactly
how it was done the last time.

So, you can see that $50 order
amount applying to incomes up to $1,150
for one child. For two children, it also

applies up to incomes of $1,150. And
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then you can see that the self-support
reserve phases out at a higher income for
two children —— and that's the shaded
area —— phases out at income $1,900. And
similarly, the incomes get higher and
higher as we get to more children.

So, then, that third column shows
if we updated it with no self-support
reserve, and you can see that the maximum
change is, if you scroll down a little
bit, that we have some decreases. That's
that fourth column that, if we go down
Just a little bit further, maybe to the
next page —— so, okay. Yeah, you are
seeing it.

If you look at that $3,200 a
month row, you will see that the existing
schedule shows a basic obligation of
$613. And the new Rothbarth measurements
show $583. So, there's a decrease of
$30, but it's only 5%. So, it is not
enough to meet an adjustment threshold,

and also this would be the combined
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income.

And the reason that we see that
decrease is because those Betson—
Rothbarth measurements are more accurate.
They have better information on income
and expenditures. And we saw some
decreases for one child. We also saw
some decreases for two and three
children. If you look at the two-child
column for $3,200, you can see that's
just a $3 decrease, and that's Jjust
because we have this improved measure of
income.

But if you scroll down even
further to higher incomes, you can see
that the new data shows that higher
income families are actually spending
more. Remember, we developed the
schedule in 2006. And some of the
improvements that we have are —— not only
do we have more current expenditures
data, the data that we had before was

from 1998 through 2004, and now we have
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expenditures data from 2013 to 2019. So,
that's one change is that we have more
current families.

The second change is that the
Bureau of Labor Statistics that measures
these expenditures, they improved how
they measure income. And so, we have
better information, particularly at low
income. They improved how they ask the
question and how they calculated it. So,
there's that.

So, some of the people that we
thought were low income, weren't low
income. And that's the reason that we
see some of the decreases.

A third improvement is that now
we are using a measure called "outlays"
which is how much family actually spend
per month. Before, we were using this
term called expenditures that mimics the
way economists measure gross domestic
product. And when they measure gross

domestic product, they consider housing
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to be a capital expenditure.

That it's —— So, they didn't
include mortgage principal in the
measurements of child-rearing or
measurements of expenditures. What they
did was they included principal. They
included tax. They included rent. They
included HOA fees. They included rent
and utilities. But now what they do with
the measure outlays is that it mimics
more how families actually expend, so it
includes mortgage principal. It includes
a HELOC. If there's a HELOC, a second
mortgage.

So, what they —— And then it also
includes anything that's financed. You
know, like before, if they bought
furniture on credit, what it would do was
if they bought it in that five quarters
that they were being surveyed, it would
have captured all the furniture, the
value, the $2,000 living room set or

whatever it is. But if they bought it on
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—— If they didn't survey them in that
five quarters that they purchased, it
wouldn't even show up.

So, now with outlays what they do
is that they buy that furniture, that
$2,000 set, and they bought it at a
monthly payment of $100 a month. So,
that $100 shows up for each of those five
quarters.

So, it's a much better
measurement to use outlays. And that's
one of the other reasons that we see some
increases at higher incomes, some large
increases because families at higher
incomes, they are more leveraged. They
are more likely to have higher —— they
are more likely to have a mortgage
principal payment. They are more likely
to buy stuff with credit. So, we are
capturing that better. So, that's the
second improvement in the data.

A third improvement in the data

is that we — the Bureau of Labor
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Statistics improved how they measured
taxes. And what this affects is —— They
were letting parents self-report their
taxes. And now they actually calculate
it based on —— it's like a turbo sort of
thing but considers the state taxes and
the federal taxes in their situation.
And what this does is it affects the
net-to—gross income ratio.

So, they were overstating the
after-tax income. And so, now we have
better information on that which helps us
identify better what proportion of that
after-tax income is actually being spent
on the child.

So, these four things, I think,
make the data so much better. One is,
again, Jjust to reiterate is, we are using
more current data. We went from an
improved measure of outlays which
captures mortgage principal better. We
improved how we measure income,

particularly at low income, and then we
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improved this after-tax calculation.

So, some of these changes —-
changes are because of these four
factors. And then a fifth factor would
be just inflationary changes. You know,
that families are having to spend more.

A sixth factor is that families have
changed their expenditure habits, and it
doesn't —— that change isn't uniform
across income. I mean, you know, it used
to be that higher income folks were the
only ones who had Internet access or a
personal computer or a smart phone. You
know, even —— and I am not saying that
everybody of low income has this, because
we know Internet access is a problem with
low income families for school, online
schooling.

But the ownership rates of
personal computers and smart phones have
increased tremendously. So, that has
captured that.

And another reason that we don't
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see, though, these increases at low
income that you might expect is because
we also cap it. These families are
actually spending more than their income.
And when we create this schedule, we
don't think it's equitable to assume they
spend more than their income. Most
states take the view that it's not
equitable to ask the parents to spend
more than their income Jjust to support
their children.

So, if they were spending 20% of
their —— If they were devoting 20% of
their expenditures to children, and they
were spending $1,200, but they actually
only had a $1,000 of income, then we
would set that schedule amount at $200,
which is 20% of their income of a $1,000
rather than 20% of $1,200 even though
they are spending $1,200, which would be
$240.

So, some of that is an artifact

of just fairness. But, again, you know,
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we saw the data on what they are actually
spending at these low incomes. So, even
if we were to bump up that schedule
amount to match that they are spending
more than their income, You know, even
though that's not a good policy, I
wouldn't recommend it Jjust because you
are probably not going to collect it.

So, sorry, I feel like it's
Groundhog Day. I keep repeating all
these differences of what the schedule
does. So, anyway, you have a schedule
with the self-support reserve in it, and
then you have a schedule without it. So,
you are well-positioned to do whatever
you feel is just on the low-income
adjustment. And I am going to stop
there.

Did we lose Penny?

MS. DAVIS: I was going to ask
Bob, if you would, scroll back up to the
first page of the side-by-side

comparison. Right. And this is —— the
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highlighted, obviously, is the
self-support reserve.

In looking at that, I was looking
at the $1,250 figure because that's
relatively close to the minimum page.

And if we put at $1,250 the existing
amounts for one child, would be $272.

If we put the self-support
reserve in the schedule, it would drop
down to $100. I know early on in our
discussion there was a lot of concern
among Committee members about the lower
income, the custodial parent getting less
money on those lower incomes if you
adjust it because of our updated
information and how that would impact the
family. But when you look at that, it's
pretty dramatic.

But when you couple that with the
fact that they are actually not
collecting it, I don't know if that's a
consideration or if there's —— if anyone

has any concerns about the adjustment on
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the lower ends.

DR. VENOHR: Penny, may I offer a
clarification to that first? I mean,
that would be the scenario if she or the
custodial parent doesn't have income.

But we talked about this before, is what
really happens —— and the data verifies
it —— is that that minimum wage is
imputed to both parents. So, actually we
need to scroll down and look at the
$2,500 amount which would be twice
$1,257. So, i1if we were just to round
here and minimum wage is $1,257, and then
if we —— both parents have $1,257, let's
just use $2,500. So, right now you see
that it's $491. So, that's about $245.
And so, really what we are talking about
is decreasing it from $245 to $232.

MS. DAVIS: So, unless it's your
first case scenario, it doesn't really
impact that much is what you are saying?

DR. VENOHR: Right.

MS. DAVIS: Coupled with the fact

Boggs Reporting & Video LLC
800.397.5590/www.boggsreporters.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

83

that they don't get it anyway, right?

DR. VENOHR: Right. And what
most states do —— and Alabama did not
like this, and we talked about this
several months ago —— is if the obligated
parent's income in number of children is
in the shaded area, assume the custodial
parent's income is zero. North Carolina
does it this way, South Carolina. So, in
North Carolina and South Carolina, they
wouldn't use that $2,500 amount. They
wouldn't use that $465. They would use
that $100 a month that you highlighted
earlier. But Alabama really —— I heard
from the Committee you did not like that
approach.

MS. DAVIS: Okay. Can we go back
to the Brady bunch and get feedback from
everybody about what information she's
provided with us now? So, we have the
existing and the updated with the SSR.

It says in the SSR in the schedule and

then the update with no SSR in the
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schedule and then the percentages. So, I
think she obviously read our minds ahead
of time as usual.

Questions? Comments from anyone?

(No response) .

MS. DAVIS: I don't know if this
discussion helps the people that had
different views on the inclusion in the
schedule or the lack of or not putting on
the worksheet. Maybe that gives you some
additional clarity.

Any comments?

(No response) .

MS. DAVIS: We definitely need to
make a decision. Again, we can't really
make a final decision today because we
don't have a quorum.

MS. BALDWIN: This is Melody
Baldwin. Penny, I had some questions,
probably just one or two.

But is there a way, if we revert
back to putting it in the schedule

that —— and I guess it would be
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considered a deviation, and we won't be
doing any calculations to determine
whether or not a self-support reserve
would apply to the custodial parent. But
would there be a way to have any
consideration for the custodial parent in
any situation if we did that without it
being called a deviation or trying to
draw up language to do that?

It's a concern for me. Now, I do
admit a couple of things. The last time
that we were reviewing to determine
whether or not we should update the
schedule, I wasn't for it because what
was being recommended —- Jjust looking at
the basics, with two minimum wage earning
parents, dropped what the obligor would
pay to below 50% of what he or she was
paying with the schedule the way it was.
And that to me was way too significant
and put too much of a burden on the
custodial parent. So, therefore, I could

not agree with it.
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Now, I am looking at this and
not — and I think I am understanding
that it is not as significant as —— what
we were looking at, the drop is not as
significant is what we were looking at
years ago i1if we just put it in the
schedule. And so that's better.
However, I do see circumstances where
perhaps the custodial parent would still
bear a heavier burden if we're not
looking at the situation where we could
deviate and apply the self-support
reserve to the custodial parent. So,
that's one concern.

Now, the thing that does convince
me that we need to obviously make, to
update, is because of the collection
rates, and we all know that we are not
collecting at the percentage that we
would like to see and that collections
are low, but there are a number of people
now because of the 2017 file rule change

that we don't see at all, that can be
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impacting those numbers. Although I
think we are getting —- you know, some of
that is just being closed and taking off
the books so to speak.

But those are some of my concerns
about putting it back in the schedule.
And I don't know if there's a way to
address that, and it may not matter if
there's only two or three of us who still
want to try to make it applicable to both
parents.

But those are my concerns. And
if there's a way to do that as an
exception or a deviation, I would like to
be able to do that.

MS. COX: Sorry. I thought you
were done. Okay. This is Amanda Cox.

I think there may be some
differing understandings of how the
self-support reserve, talking about
applying it to both parents. Dr. Venohr,
can you kind of explain? My

understanding is that having it apply to
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both parents means that, whoever is the
obligor, they would get the benefit of
the self-support reserve. Am I — Do you
see what I am saying?

I think that like what Melody was
saying was applying the self-support
reserve to the custodial parent, but the
self-support reserve, I thought only
applied to the obligor. How does that
work, because I think I am a little
confused.

DR. VENOHR: Well, yes and no. I
mean, it is kind of complicated.
Mathematically it would only apply to the
obligated parent. It would only make a
difference in their final order. But
when you have it on the worksheet
visually, it is not like you can give
them the $900, you know, on the
worksheet.

So, theoretically it's there.

But you are right that mathematically it

really only affects what the obligated
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parent has to pay and what is going to
trigger his enforcement remedies.

You know, when there are a lot of
studies out there that suggests that if
you start asking him for more money,
particularly if he or she doesn't have an
attachment to the labor force, that it
drives him or her underground, and then
you are never going to get in the
situation where you can use wage
withholding. You know, driver's license
suspension could further make him or her
avoid employment or even contact with the
child because, I mean, he needs that.

But getting back to —— I don't
think I have really given you a
definitive answer. But getting back to
Judge Baldwin's question about deviating
for —— and I think this might tie to
Amanda's question —— is when would you
want to deviate? So, when we looked at
the schedule with the self-support

reserve, when you engage in that practice
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of imputing income to both minimum wage
to both parents, you end up with an order
of about $237 a month, which is about the
same amount that you do now. You know,
so there's little change.

But the situation is different if
you assume the custodial parent's income
is zero. And we saw that was where Penny
first started where she started at the
schedule amount right at $1,250, and she
showed that it would decrease to $100.

So, my question for you —— and
this might be —— I think this might help
answer Amanda's question and maybe
address Judge Baldwin's concern —— is
when would you be — When would the case
be in that situation where you wouldn't
impute income of $1,257 a month to the
obligated parent? Because under the
existing —— Because that would result in
a $100 order versus a $237 order. And
there's actually a problem with that

right now with the existing schedule. I
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need to pull back that number, but it's
the same effect, but it's just not as
big.

So, I'm assuming that Judge
Baldwin, when she was talking about
considering the needs of the custodial
parent, maybe it would be that situation
where the custodial parent's income is
zero. But I don't understand when a
judge would —— or the agency would ask
for income to be imputed and not be
imputed. Would that be the ——

MS. DAVIS: The custodial parent
is incurring those additional expenses.
So, they are actually paying the
out—-of—pocket —— more out—of-pocket
expenses 1f they are paying maybe the
childcare because they are actually
working the minimum wage job, and they
are paying childcare, and they are
paying —— maybe they are fortunate enough
that their job does supply some type of

medical insurance for their child,
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although the government might be doing it
in that instance.

But is that the kind of scenario
where the cost of raising a child is
actually, you know, borne more and more
heavily by the custodial parent even
though you're imputing the same amount
income to both parents? One of them is
actually paying more out. Is that what
you're thinking about, Melody, or another
situation?

MS. BALDWIN: Yes, ma'am. And I
do need to make a correction. I'm sorry
for the confusion about that.

I am an attorney. I am not a
judge. But, anyways, I Jjust wanted to
make sure that was clear on the record.

But it is. I mean, you are
talking about a parent who already has
the child almost a 100% of the time in
most of these IV-D cases, I mean, with
some rare exception. But when we

actually do have custodial parents that
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come in begging the noncustodial parent
to participate more and get the child
more so that they can afford, quite
frankly, to better support the child when
the child is with them, they are already
bearing a huge part of the percentage
that's never on paper.

If we only apply the self-support
reserve to the obligor, the custodial
parent doesn't get the benefit of that.

I mean, it's somewhat of a cushion if
they both get it —— I would think —— in
the ultimate percentage. Now, maybe I
haven't thought enough about it. But I
am talking about in the shared
percentage.

DR. VENOHR: Do you —— Sorry.

MS. BALDWIN: No, that's okay.
It's just going to be more for the
custodial parent, and it always has been.
And quite frankly, I'm not sure I even
realized that until I got on this

Committee.
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So, you know, what I didn't know,
I guess, wasn't hurting what I thought,
but now I do. So, I just think that we
are putting more on the custodial parent
than perhaps we should.

DR. VENOHR: Did somebody put a
hand with up? I think that's so cool to
do that. I didn't put that hand up.

What I am hearing is that you
really don't want that self-support
reserve to apply to minimum wage. And
what that means is, if you want that
outcome, you can't just update your
schedule using the same assumptions that
you used the last time.

The same assumptions that you
used the last time and updating it to the
current federal poverty level is going to
have that self-support reserve apply at
$1,257 a month. If you want to change,
that's fine.

If you really feel strongly that

somebody that —— a custodial parent
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that's making full-time minimum wage
should receive more than $100 a month,
and you want to keep that adjustment in
the schedule, you have to abandon your
assumptions about the self-support
reserve. You are going to have to lower
it. I mean, that's the bottom line.

HON. FORD: Well, this is Judge
Ford. I think the challenge we always
have gone through and with the guidelines
to try to find some equity.
Unfortunately, the different family
circumstances and the different income
levels can never get to that certainty.
Whoever has the child at this point will
not be penalized more or for the raising
of the — the person who doesn't have the
child. And the high equity, I don't
think there's a way you can do it under
the current system that we are operating
at.

MS. DAVIS: Do we have some

additional questions? I appreciate
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certainly Jane helping us with these. It
is not easy, or we would not be here
months into the meetings trying to
balance all the —— and Judge Ford used a
good term, the equities between the
parents supporting their children.

In the case where you are
imputing income, the —— it's my
assumption that more often than not, it's
the noncustodial parent that is not
present, and that's where you're imputing
income, or the judge is imputing income
when the custodian party is present even
if he or she does not indicate they have
a Jjob.

DR. VENOHR: Data was telling us
that it's imputed to both, and it's the
common practice. But I am certainly
going to let the judges and attorneys
override me on that.

MS. BALDWIN: This is Melody
Baldwin again.

One of the scenarios I think we
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see is we have a custodial parent that's
not working full time that appears at
court, and they impute it at minimum wage
for 40 hours a week even though they may
not be working 40 hours a week. And if
it's a default order, of course, they are
going to do the same thing for the
noncustodial. We see that a lot.

MS. DAVIS: And it almost
benefits the noncustodial parent not to
show up and have that imputed if you
can't —— 1if he is making more, he would
have to —— if he shows up, then he would
have to disclose that.

MS. BALDWIN: This is Melody
Baldwin again. That's exactly true.
That's why we ask our judges to impute at
least $10 an hour, especially now.

DR. VENOHR: You know, based on
the quarterly wage data, and I don't have
the Alabama numbers in front of me, but I
am pretty sure we ran it. But income is

usually 80% —— based on quarterly wage
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data, which isn't perfect, it's 80% of
the time less than minimum wage. And
that speaks to what Judge Ford was saying
earlier about how they might have a job
this week, but next week they might not
have a job. And it might be 20 hours or
30 hours.

So, even though there's a
presumption of full-time minimum wage
earnings, most people at the bottom rung
aren't earning it. But then, again,
there's that whole issue of what Melody
is bringing up is that there's another
economy out there or, you know, even what
Penny was saying, the $10 an hour, or
that they might have a side gig that
isn't even showing up in the quarterly
wage data. And, you know, we do, as
economists, know that the underground
economy is about 8% to 14% of our
economy .

So, what I would say if I were to

generalize is that for the majority of
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orders, when income is imputed at
full-time minimum wage, I would say
probably 70% to 80% of the time that
parent is probably making less because he
or she doesn't have 40 hours a week or
every week of the year. And COVID hits,
and all of a sudden that restaurant job
went away, or whatever that Jjob was, the
warehouse Jjob.

But then there's probably, you
know, 20% to 30% of parents, and, you
know, you might have different
experiences where they actually do have
more income. I think Melody's point is
valid and Penny's point is valid. That
if they don't show up to court, they know
that it's going to be imputed. But this
is a problem outside the guidelines. I
mean, the guidelines have to address both
circumstances.

And, you know, if we can figure
out away to, you know, identify those

that are actually earning more and
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actually those that are earning less,
that would be wonderful, but we have to
deal with both of them.

MS. DAVIS: I guess you could
impute. I guess the Committee could
choose to have a rule that imputed an
amount that if you don't show up, on
default, it would be the average wage of
the person in Alabama. We could do
something like that, which would raise
it. It might be an incentive to make
them show up.

DR. VENOHR: Yeah. Iowa and
North Dakota do that. It doesn't make
them show up. They have shown data.
What some states or jurisdictions are
experimenting with is using that
quarterly wage data, which is available
to the child support agency, to kind of
figure out if he or she might be in that
other category where they are not getting
enough full-time work. But identifying

those that are actually earning more ——
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yeah.

North Dakota has, like, three
different tiers of income imputation
where one is at median earnings, and
another one is minimum wage. But they
have an administrative process. So, I
think it's more easy for the —— it's
within the child support agency. So,
they have all that income data available
to them, and they can kind of figure it
out.

I think a barrier would be
getting that information to the Court and
making sure that he or she had all that
stuff. I am sorry. I am thinking out
loud about whether it could be applied to
Alabama.

I am going to stop there.

MS. COX: Dr. Venohr, this is
Amanda Cox again.

Back on the one child where it
goes up to the $1,500, if they are

imputing minimum wage for both parents,
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are there going to be —— I don't know if
you have the data. Are there really a
lot of orders that are in that category
of the combined $1,500 or below? Because
I mean, I don't like how that looks
either, the reduction, but I just
wondered if that's really happening
frequently.

DR. VENOHR: You know, we do have
data. I will try to pull it. Again, it
sounds like —— I mean, you have to make a
decision as a committee, whether you're
really attached to these order amounts,
if you want to bring them down. And that
means you have to abandon your update to
the self-support reserve, and you are not
going to make a difference to the family.
I mean, they are still not going to get
the full amount. And I will try to look
that up. But, yeah, we have data on
that, and I will try to look it up while
—— We don't have much time, and I think

you have public comments, so I'm going to
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let Penny overtalk me. I've just rambled
today. So sorry.

MS. DAVIS: No. At this point,
we don't have anyone in the public that
has expressed an interest in speaking.
So, I don't mind going over a little bit.
I think these types of discussions with
the Committee are critical to everybody
kind of working through their thought
process.

So, don't be —— you know, let's
spend another 15 minutes if people have
additional questions since we don't have
anybody in the public that expressed a
desire to comment today.

I will say this: If anybody who
is on the public now would un-mute if you
changed your mind, please do so.

(No response) .

MS. DAVIS: Okay. Let's just go
ahead with the discussion with the
Committee members then.

DR. VENOHR: I haven't come
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across an exact number, but it's small.
It's definitely less than 10%. It might
be, like, five or three. I just haven't
put my finger on the right data, you
know.

You know, one thing I am hearing
too is that it doesn't seem to be an
issue in other states. I hear it's,
like, why are we doing driver's license
suspensions and credit bureau reporting
for these, you know, cases where they are
never going to pay. But that doesn't
seem to be an issue in what I am hearing
here.

MS. COX: This is Amanda again.
Maybe —— I mean, even though it looks
bad, maybe that is the self-support
reserve doing its job if they are not
able to pay it anyway. I don't know.
But I see your point if they are not
going to get it anyway. Perhaps it is
not good for us to go through and try to

fix every little column.
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MS. DAVIS: I am going to
actually do what I said I wasn't going to
do is to put one person on the spot.
Professor Gray?

PROFESSOR GRAY: Yes, ma'am.

MS. DAVIS: You are our local
numbers guy. And Jjust looking at it —— I
know you're not —— One of the benefits of
having you on our Committee is that you
are not as tied into the way our laws
look at things as you are looking at it
from a numbers perspective. Will you be
comfortable if I ask you to share your
thoughts at this point? And if you are
not, feel free to say, I don't want to
comment. That's okay too.

PROFESSOR GRAY: No, I am
absolutely glad to do it.

See, I have been thinking about
this a pretty good bit during this
discussion, and I was one of the ones who
voted in favor of keeping things on the

worksheet as opposed to building it in
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the schedule.

Here are a few things: You know,
we keep talking about the actual data,
which suggests that people don't pay like
they should. Okay? But it seems like
what our role needs to be is to try to do
the best job we can to estimate what is
the appropriate amount that should be
paid for the child support. You know,
that's why we have Dr. Venohr. She is
basically doing that economic analysis
for us to determine what those amounts
need to be.

So, I think we need to do the
best job we can on that front, and then
let the chips fall where they may as far
as enforcement goes. Now, I kept also
thinking too that part of this
Committee's title involves enforcement.
And, you know, we don't really spend a
lot of time discussing that, and maybe
that's something we need to look at in

the future.
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So, I think my thing would be to
come up with the best model you can to
get the amount correct, and do the best
you can there. And I think we have done
a really good job with that so far.

The other reason for keeping
things in the worksheet that we had
discussed earlier is, it's a lot clearer
to the parents how the calculation is
being done. I know we are worried about
the calculations being very complicated,
but I don't think we have gotten past the
point of it being more complicated than a
10-40EZ, you know? There are a few steps
in there, but it is nothing incredibly
difficult.

And as Dr. Venohr has talked
about, there's a lot of ways of arranging
that information, and there may be a way
of doing it that makes it a little easier
to understand or see it. It's not going
to be much better than what she's already

produced, though, because there are Jjust
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several things that have to be considered
there.

Another thing we talked about in
having a worksheet was that it allowed us
to make changes without having to bring
Dr. Venohr back into the picture. One
change would be: What if we decide that
we want to change that poverty level?
Okay? If we change that, that's easy
enough to put in the worksheet. No
problem. But if we worked it into the
tables itself, then that would require
Dr. Venohr to come back in to update the
schedules for us.

So, those are just a few things
that occurred to me. And Dr. Venohr
could probably throw in a few other
things that make the worksheet better for
us in terms of us being able to make
changes that we needed to.

MS. DAVIS: Thank you, Brian. I
think that does a good job of kind of

summing up several of our discussions
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over the months. And we sort of have not
focused on the flexibility of that,
putting in the worksheet versus putting
it into the schedule.

And I think in one of our earlier
discussions, the thought was the minimum
wage may be substantially different. The
way people are actually getting paid.
COVID has certainly impacted them, quite
a loss of jobs, but you also see a lot
signs for people wanting employees too.
So, it's cutting both ways.

PROFESSOR GRAY: One other thing
that occurs to me too —— I know Dr.
Venohr has mentioned —— that typically
you don't overlay the self-support
reserve and shared parenting time. And I
guess this is because it gets a little
more difficult. It adds more to the
worksheet. But if you don't have the
worksheet, then it's impossible to do
both of those things, to have both

parents access to SSR and to be able to
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do the shared parenting part.

MS. DAVIS: I think that's a
helpful reminder to us, while our
decision has been so complicated and why
many of us keep mentally flipping and
flopping from one direction or leaning
towards one way and then leaning towards
the other.

Anyone else want to comment about
particularly some of the things that the
Professor mentioned that we previously
talked about? I know we have some
relatively new Committee members, and one
of our new ones could not join us today.
But Judge Fridy has joined us a couple of
times.

Any of the newer Committee
members have any questions or comments?

(No response) .

MS. DAVIS: All right. Well,
Jane, do you have any comments that you
would like to make with regard to what

Professor Gray said or any other things
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before we kind of wind up and look to the
next meeting?

DR. VENOHR: You know, I
appreciate his comments. I forgot about
the advantage of the worksheet and not
involving me to update the schedule. And
I think that is a hard thing for the
Committee is to just kind of wrap their
heads around what's going to happen if
minimum wage increases.

And, you know, I guess one thing
you could do, as I think about it, is I
am always impressed that Alabama has a
lot of flexibility is that you can do one
change and then you can do another
change. You don't have to wait every
four years like most states.

So, you could operate under the
assumption that minimum wage isn't going
to change and have a schedule ready for
adopting the worksheet adjustment down
the road. I mean, I think you

probably —— It does make sense to go with
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it in the future as you do the shared
parenting, as Professor Gray says, and
that sort of thing. But I feel like
there's some reluctance on the Committee
just to change what you are doing right
now and to change those amounts.

You know, maybe you adopt all the
schedule changes except for the low
income, and Jjust explicitly say you have
a self-support reserve equivalent to the
poverty level back in 2006, you know, if
there's that much hesitancy.

But I just don't want you to lose
sight of updating the whole schedule is
what I am saying. I think we have sort
of gotten bogged down into this
low—income adjustment, and maybe it's
time to think about updating the
schedule. And if there's so much
hesitancy about changing those amounts,
Just keep them, put it as explicit in
your guidelines so the feds know you met

that requirement, and then address it
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again when the federal minimum wage
changes. That's another option.

I will stop there.

MS. DAVIS: T don't get the sense
that anybody is backing away from the
idea of updating the whole schedule. I
think that —— unless I am reading the
Committee incorrectly, that everybody was
on board with that.

I think the concern was once we
saw the numbers and how we dealt with the
low income adjustment and all the data
including what actually is being paid is
significant, but I certainly agree with
Professor Gray's comment with regard to
the enforcement aspect of it. We don't
really want to reward people who can pay
that are not paying or impact on people
that can pay by lowering the amount they
have to pay because a lot of people are
not paying.

DR. VENOHR: You know, California

had a legislative proposal that it would
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have gone in their guidelines where they
looked at whether he had a history of
incarceration, how long he had any
employment record and quarterly wage.

And that —— So, it nuanced who
they were imputing income too, and you
could do it to both parents. So, that
would be an indicator of whether, you
know, they end up in part of the schedule
where both parents are imputed income or
only one. And it does get into that
enforcement realm, because, you know, I
really appreciate your point. And the
problem is, is those parents that are
only marginally employed, as Judge Ford
pointed out, they don't have enough hours
or those ones that Melody's, like, you
know, there's job one, and it's all over
the place, so she's doing $10 an hour.

So, you know, that's another path
the Committee could go is to try to
nuance when to impute income and at what

amount and what data you're going to use
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for that.

MS. DAVIS: Any additional

comments? Any additional questions?
(No response) .

MS. DAVIS: All right. Dr.
Venohr, at this time, what do you need
from our Committee to be able to proceed?
A decision?

DR. VENOHR: Yeah.

MS. DAVIS: Okay. Well, again,
let me confirm with Stephanie. We still
do not have a quorum; is that correct?

MS. BLACKBURN: No quorum.

MS. DAVIS: Okay. Bob, when is
our next scheduled meeting?

MR. MADDOX: I believe I sent an
email several weeks ago to poll the
Committee members. And we do have —— A
majority of the Committee members say
they can meet again on Friday, October
1st beginning at 10:00 o'clock Central
Time. So, I think we should propose that

as the next meeting date for now. We
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also polled, I think, October 20th and
21st maybe or maybe 21st or 22nd. Excuse
me. And we had a majority say they could
meet those two days, as well, if we need
them.

MS. DAVIS: Okay. Let me ask the
Committee now. Let's look at the first
of October date. Of the Committee
members that are currently present, is
there anybody that thinks or are noticing
at this point they cannot attend October
1st? If you are not visible, raise your
hand or un—-mute, and let us know.

(No response) .

MS. DAVIS: All right. Let me
ask the same question about the other
one. The other date was Thursday,
October 21st. Anybody who is currently
present that knows they cannot attend on
October 21st, a Thursday?

(No response) .
MS. DAVIS: All right. So, the

same question with regard to Friday,
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October the 22nd, anybody that knows they
cannot attend that day?

MS. HALL: Penny, this is Mallory
Hall. I couldn't quite get un-muted fast
enough. I have a conflict on Thursday
beginning —— it looks like at 11:30. So,
I would be able to attend first, you
know, half or so of the meeting but not
the second half.

MS. DAVIS: Okay. That's on
Thursday, the 21st?

MS. HALL: Yes.

MS. DAVIS: Brian, I think you
raised your hand. Was that for the 22nd?
You are muted.

PROFESSOR GRAY: Yes, ma'am. I
have a presentation I have to give at
10:00 o'clock that morning.

MS. DAVIS: Okay. And that would
take your entire day?

PROFESSOR GRAY: I mean, a couple
of hours. I could be available in the

afternoon.
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MS. DAVIS: Okay. All right.
Okay. So, it looks like October the 1st
is the best date for us to go. So, if we
can get —— Judge Fridy, you are un-muted.
Did you have a date?

HON. FRIDY: I was just going to
say the 22nd. I am out all day on the
22nd, as well.

MS. DAVIS: Okay. So, it looks
like the 22nd is out. If we lose two
more members, I think that would be hard
to get a quorum.

And, Mallory, you are out for
part of the 21st; is that correct?

MS. HALL: Yes. And I mean, it
could change closer to time, so I
certainly wouldn't say to, you know, work
around my schedule. But as of right now,
I have a meeting from —— it looks like
11:30 until 1:00.

MS. DAVIS: Okay. So, let's free
up the 22nd as far as everybody's

calendar is concerned.
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MR. MADDOX: You mean the 21st,
right?

MS. DAVIS: No. Take the 22nd
off the calendar.

MR. MADDOX: Oh, off the
calendar. Okay. I got you. Sorry.

MS. DAVIS: Two people can't come
then. So, we will meet the 1st and maybe
potentially the 21st.

The reason we are trying to get a
decision made in time to give it to the
Court to meet our deadline of having the
information to the Court is so they can
make a decision by the —— or at least it
will be in their ballpark to deal with
that before the 31st deadline or the
30th. It's kind of December that we are
kind of looking to. I think Jennifer has
indicated we are probably okay with the
feds since they are seeing that we are
working really hard trying to meet the
deadlines.

So, we will put a "please show
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up" out to everybody for Friday, October
the 1st, the same time frame.

My other suggestion would be if
anyone —— 1f any groups of you would like
to sort of work through some of the
issues together in your separate groups,
then if you come up with some proposal
that you think captures, you know, a way
to balance all these balls so that we can
come up with an equitable solution that
is fair to both parents the best we can.
And I would encourage that and suggest if
you have perhaps a solution that's
independent of what Dr. Venohr has
already given us, that maybe we could
submit that if we meet on October 1lst.
Let's say by the 24th. You have a
proposal different than what we looked
at, any groups that want to work
together. And then we could then send it
out to the Committee. Somebody may have
—— Some brainstorming may lead to some

other good ideas.
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So, if that's okay with y'all, we
will encourage you to come up with any
proposals. I guess, then, Bob, do you
want them sent to you?

MR. MADDOX: That's fine. Yes,
ma'am. Absolutely.

MS. DAVIS: And certainly we
would welcome any additional comments
from the very faithful members of the
public who have been attending. You may
have some suggestions that we have not
thought of. And we would certainly
welcome, as we do always, written
comments from the public.

So, if you have an idea, you have
heard the discussion in how we are trying
to balance the equities among the parents
and with the goal of making sure the
children have the support they need, then
we would certainly welcome that also.

So, let me stop now and ask for
any questions or comments from the

Committee members.

Boggs Reporting & Video LLC
800.397.5590/www.boggsreporters.com




10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

122

MS. COX: Professor Davis, this
is Amanda Cox.

I just want to make sure —— Have
we already decided that we are going to
update with the BR5 using —— Okay. Dr.
Venohr is shaking her head. I would
maybe like some clarity as to what's
already been decided with the quorum and
what hasn't and just the main issues we
need to decide. I know we need to decide
schedule versus worksheet for the
self-support reserve and whether we are
going to make any changes within that.

MS. DAVIS: All right. Well, I
think we had —— Most of our votes have
been straw votes. And I think the —— and
try to remember if we have had any —— all
our votes have been —— we may have had
one quorum vote which was with the idea
that we can always come back and review
it after our entire discussion.

So, I think you are right, that

the first thing we would want to do is to
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make sure that the Committee does
continue to want to update the schedule.
And then the leaning has been to use the
new figures that Judge ——- that Judge
Venohr —— making you a judge all of a
sudden —- that Dr. Venohr has been using
as examples. The straw vote was to do
that. We can certainly revisit that
issue because it was a straw vote.

Anything else that we need to do,
Dr. Venohr, that you can think of in
order for us to complete our task and
also Jennifer?

(No response) .

MS. DAVIS: Jennifer, can you
think of anything else in order to meet
our federal requirements?

(No response) .

MS. DAVIS: I don't know if
Jennifer is still there or not. We will
circle back to the Committee, and we'll
maybe confirm later with Jennifer that

the two primary issues we need to do is
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deciding about updating the schedule and
the amounts based on the numbers that are
used and if the self-support reserve is
going to be in the worksheet or in the
schedule.

I think we did vote on
maintaining —— I guess we probably want
to revote on maintaining the $50 amount
as being the minimum amount. You know,
that's part of what the schedule has
been. I guess that's an alternative, if
people are concerned about the amounts
dropping lower, you know, we could raise
that minimum amount even with the
self-support reserve, and that might be a
way to deal with it.

Jane, go ahead. I see your
finger.

DR. VENOHR: You know, I think
there was a something drafted by a
subgroup, a work group earlier, about
when to do a zero or a minimum order that

was relevant to that $50. Where is that?
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MS. BLACKBURN: I believe that
was something to do with if they were on
some sort of needs assistance.

DR. VENOHR: Yeah, it was well
drafted, but it ties into that $50
minimum order. What we're seeing in
states is with the new federal rule, that
they are going away from that $50 minimum
order with that work group drafted.

MS. DAVIS: Maybe, Bob, you can
pull that out and send it back to
everybody. Stephanie, when you were on
the Committee with that —— Were you the
chair of that Committee? I kind of think
you were.

MS. BLACKBURN: I don't think I
was the chairman. Wasn't Melody the
chairman?

MS. DAVIS: Maybe so.

MR. MADDOX: Ms. Palmer, I think,
was the chair if I remember.

MS. DAVIS: Okay. Well, Bob, if

you would pull out that memo and send it
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back to everybody, that would be helpful.

MR. MADDOX: Sure.

MS. DAVIS: But, you know, I just
think that —— I think that everybody was
in agreement with the policy behind
having a minimum order. And it could be
that raising the minimum order could
offset the lower end where you are
dropping the amount substantially.

But thank you, Amanda. Those
were good comments.

Any other comments needed for
clarification?

(No response) .

MS. BLACKBURN: I just want to
thank everyone that is actually showing
to all the meetings. You know, it's
noted those that do show up every time.
And the Court is aware that we haven't
had a quorum for the last several
meetings. So, we definitely need to get
this done by the end of the year, and

they are aware of the deadline, too.
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MS. DAVIS: And we appreciate
that. And they are obviously —— Some
people have been very faithful to this
Committee. We have met substantially
more than most Supreme Court committees
meet.

MS. BLACKBURN: That's very, very
true.

MS. DAVIS: And people have been
very faithful. I know Drew's wife is
seriously 111 and in chemotherapy. I
think that's probably the reason he is
not here, and one of the judges is in a
capital murder case, and several other
reasons.

And I appreciate Stephanie making
the comments on behalf of the Court
because they are appreciative of people's
faithfulness. And it's kind of like we
are on the 10-yard line. We Jjust have to
get to the goal, and I think we can do
that. $So, again, thank you, Stephanie.

MR. MADDOX: You had to throw in
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the football analogy, Penny, close to
football season.

MS. DAVIS: It's now less than 25
days. The last count I saw was ——

MR. MADDOX: Three weeks from
tomorrow.

MS. DAVIS: There you go. Thank
you.

Jane, we don't live in Alabama
without throwing in a football comment at
this time of the year for sure.

MR. MADDOX: Someone on the radio
locally said the college football that
counts starts in three weeks.

MS. DAVIS: That's right.

MR. MADDOX: Two weeks from
Saturday starts the other games.

MS. DAVIS: Yeah, I heard rumors
to that.

All right. Well, thank y'all. I
really do appreciate everybody's
participation, and I look forward to

seeing everybody in October. Again, if
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you have some suggestions, if you will
send those in September 24th. In the
meantime maybe, Bob, when we get back,
maybe you and I and Jennifer and maybe
anybody else that wants to, we will form
a Committee. If you will just let Bob
know you would like to be on sort of a
quick steering committee to formulate the
questions that were posed. I think
Amanda is kind of directing us in the
right way to maybe approach the October
1st meeting and maybe actually send out
what we are going to vote on and let
people think about that.

So, if you would like to be on
the steering committee to kind of help
formulate those questions that we will
send out to the Committee or the
directions, then I am drafting Jennifer
because she didn't un-mute to say
otherwise and Bob and anybody else that
would like to participate on that, please

let Bob know. And if not, I may call you
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and draft you to do that. So, you get
more credit if you actually volunteer
rather than having to be drafted, double
pay and all that.

All right. Thank y'all.

Appreciate it.

(Conclusion of the Advisory
Committee on Child Support
Guidelines and Enforcement

meeting at 12:26 P.M.)
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$337 [1] 55/8
$360 [3] 54/13
54/17 54/18

$465 [1] 83/12
$491 [1] 82/16
$50 [8] 71/8 71/9
71/18 71/20 124/8
124/23 125/5 125/8
$54 [1] 49/5
$583 [1] 72/20
$613 [1] 72/19
$67 [1] 54/22
$7.25 [2] 24/2 48/2
$7.50 [1] 24/2
$77 [1] 54/21
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$800 [1] 71/8
$871[1] 71/1

$900 [2] 71/12
88/19

$981 [4] 52/7 52/16
71/16 71/17

'22 [1] 11/17

1

1-256-301-8700 [1]
62/7

10 [2] 49/9 104/2
10-40EZ [1] 107/14
10-yard [1] 127/20
100 [1] 92/20

105 [1] 22/6
10:00 [4] 1/51/20
115/21 117/18
10th [1] 12/23
11:30 [2] 117/6
118/20

12 [3] 1/4 12/17
20/15

12:26 [1] 130/12
12th [2] 1/20
131/12

13 [4] 41/2 43/8
43/14 46/21

130 [1] 131/12

14 [7] 21/18 30/13

32/7 34/13 46/20
47/5 98/20

15[7] 41/2 41/3
41/5 41/8 47/9
47/11 103/12

16 [1] 34/15

17 [2] 20/21 34/16
18 [1] 34/16

1998 [1] 73/23
1:00 [1] 118/20
1st [7] 115/21
116/12 118/2 119/8
120/2 120/16
129/12

2

20 [8] 19/23 47/11
79/12 79/13 79/18
79/19 98/6 99/11

2001 [1] 71/2

2004 [1] 73/23

2006 [2] 73/19
112/11

2013 [1] 74/1

2017 [1] 86/22

2019 [1] 74/1

2021 [9] 1/41/21
12/17 68/1 70/5
70/7 71/3 131/12
132/5

2022 [2] 69/10
132/11

2023 [1] 69/10

20th [1] 116/1

21 [1] 47/11

21st [8] 116/2 116/2
116/18 116/20
117/11 118/14
119/1 119/9

22 [1] 132/10
22nd [8] 116/2
117/1 117/14 118/7
118/8 118/10
118/22 119/3

23 [1] 41/9

24th [2] 120/17
129/2

25 [1] 128/3

2nd [1] 16/8

30 [2] 98/7 99/11
30th [1] 119/17
31st [2] 11/17
119/16

36104 [1] 3/12

4

40 [4] 61/14 97/4
97/5 99/5

40EZ [1] 107/14
4th [1] 12/20

S
50 [2] 61/14 85/18




7

7th [1] 132/4

3

8/9/2022 [1] 132/11
80 [4] 51/12 97/23
98/1 99/3

8700 [2] 62/6 62/7

9

9/30/22 [1] 132/10
90 [1] 51/14

A

AM[2] 1/51/20
abandon [2] 95/4
102/15

ability [2] 40/16
56/11

able [10] 6/19 8/5
30/18 31/15 87/15
104/19 108/19
109/23 115/7 117/7
about [62] 5/15
11/10 16/10 16/21
17/20 18/5 21/22
23/6 23/18 25/4
29/11 29/20 32/5
35/16 36/2 39/14
40/19 52/10 60/11
66/13 66/22 69/13
70/6 70/14 81/12
81/23 82/6 82/16

82/17 83/4 83/19
87/6 87/20 89/18
90/3 90/3 91/5
92/10 92/14 92/19
93/14 93/15 95/5
98/4 98/20 101/16
105/19 106/3
107/10 107/18
108/3 110/9 110/12
111/4 111/12
112/18 112/20
116/16 124/1
124/12 124/21
129/14

above [1] 43/20
absolutely [2]
105/18 121/6
access [3] 78/12
78/16 109/23
accommodate [2]
20/7 20/10
account [1] 52/12
ACCR [2] 132/2
132/10

accurate [1] 73/4
acknowledge [1]
6/9
acknowledged [1]
9/6

across [2] 78/10
104/1

actual [2] 33/17

106/3

actually [37] 24/15
25/15 34/2 43/12
47/18 48/11 53/22
54/4 54/12 55/16
60/3 73/17 74/18
75/11 77/4 77/14
79/4 79/15 80/1
81/20 82/9 90/22
91/15 91/18 92/5
92/9 92/23 99/13
99/23 100/1 100/23
105/2 109/8 113/13
126/16 129/12
130/2

add [4] 19/8 36/21
42/10 62/14
add-ons [3] 19/8
36/21 42/10
additional [15]
18/7 20/5 42/14
44/3 44/9 61/18
64/2 64/4 84/11
91/14 95/23 103/13
115/2 115/3 121/8
address [6] 16/15
29/23 87/8 90/15
99/19 112/23
addressed [1] 20/3
adds [1] 109/19
adequately [1] 20/4
Adjunct [1] 2/6




A

adjust [2] 71/13
81/15
adjusted [3] 21/2
70/21 71/3
adjustment [26]
15/20 16/9 16/20
24/16 25/18 26/3
27/19 29/16 35/21
35/23 38/1 52/4
54/9 54/14 54/21
54/22 60/13 60/18
61/2 72/22 80/17
81/23 95/3 111/21
112/17 113/12
administered [2]
26/8 26/9
administrative [3]
3/19 12/16 101/6
admit [1] 85/11
adopt [3] 16/19
60/23 112/7
adopting [1] 111/21
advantage [2] 37/8
111/5
ADVISORY [5]
1/1 1/15 5/2 130/9
131/9
affecting [1] 57/3
affects [3] 77/277/8
88/23
afford [1] 93/3

after [9] 41/5 42/13
51/8 51/9 58/2
77/11 77/14 78/1
122/21

after-tax [5] 51/8
51/9 77/11 77/14
78/1

afternoon [1]
117/23

again [25] 5/19
15/1 45/6 47/13
55/13 55/15 63/8
65/15 65/18 70/12
70/19 77/18 79/23
84/15 96/22 97/16
98/11 101/20
102/10 104/15
113/1 115/10
115/20 127/22
128/23

agency [5] 49/19
50/21 91/10 100/19
101/8

ago [3] 83/5 86/6
115/17

agree [4] 59/19
62/4 85/23 113/14

agreement [1]
126/5

ahead [6] 39/4 42/5
66/5 84/2 103/21
124/17

ALABAMA [44]
1/3 1/18 1/19 2/7
2/7 2/10 2/12 2/14
2/14 2/16 2/17 2/19
2/20 2/21 3/2 3/3
3/5 3/7 3/9 3/12
3/14 3/14 3/17 3/17
3/19 3/20 38/4
47/21 48/11 48/22
56/20 67/23 71/3
83/3 83/14 97/21
100/9 101/17
111/13 128/9 131/2
131/5 131/8 132/1

Alabama's [2] 52/4
52/12

ALECS [1] 53/16

algebra [1] 20/9

all [48] 5/21 10/4
10/16 10/18 14/8
24/5 31/19 44/1
44/19 47/1 47/18
50/3 50/9 55/17
64/6 64/6 64/13
65/10 68/9 68/17
69/7 71/9 75/21
80/10 86/18 86/23
96/4 99/7 101/9
101/14 110/20
112/7 113/12
114/18 115/5
116/15 116/22




A

all... [11] 118/1
118/7 120/9 122/14
122/17 123/5
126/17 128/20
130/4 130/5 131/21
alleviating [1]
50/19
allowed [1] 108/4
almost [4] 33/19
71/16 92/20 97/9
alone [1] 37/1
already [11] 38/9
38/16 58/8 58/19
66/3 92/19 93/5
107/22 120/15
122/4 122/8
also [25] 11/9 11/11
12/2 12/20 23/4
26/6 31/18 33/14
33/15 41/19 49/19
56/9 69/16 69/21
71/6 71/22 72/23
73/7 75/15 79/3
106/17 109/10
116/1 121/20
123/13
alternative [3]
16/11 34/5 124/11
although [4] 5/14
65/17 87/1 92/1
always [11] 5/7

13/8 15/4 17/18
66/5 66/13 93/20
95/9 111/13 121/13
122/20
am [54] 8/18 8/23
9/3 9/11 9/14 15/4
16/7 18/3 23/5
26/17 27/8 28/4
29/17 32/5 39/22
43/12 45/15 46/21
49/15 57/16 60/4
62/10 66/4 67/15
70/6 78/14 80/17
86/1 86/2 88/3 88/4
88/10 92/15 92/15
93/15 94/9 96/18
97/22 101/15
101/15 101/18
104/6 104/13 105/1
105/17 111/13
112/15 113/7 118/7
129/19 131/16
131/18 131/20
131/23
AMANDA [11]
2/15 7/10 57/23
58/23 59/19 87/17
101/20 104/15
122/2 126/10
129/10
Amanda's [3]
59/23 89/20 90/14

among [3] 68/23
81/12 121/17
amount [40] 20/12
21/12 31/21 33/1
35/8 41/16 42/16
48/23 49/3 49/17
51/17 52/1 53/3
53/14 53/22 54/4
54/12 54/17 55/7
55/11 60/7 71/18
71/21 79/17 80/4
82/11 83/11 90/4
90/10 92/7 100/7
102/19 106/8 107/3
113/19 114/23
124/8 124/9 124/14
126/9
amounts [14] 35/2
49/13 50/19 51/5
56/16 56/23 57/2
81/7 102/13 106/12
112/6 112/20 124/2
124/12
analogy [1] 128/1
analysis [1] 106/11
another [12] 60/4
65/23 66/14 78/23
92/10 98/13 101/5
103/12 108/3
111/15 113/2
114/20
answer [3] 24/13




A

answer... [2] 89/17
90/14

any [45] 13/2 13/3
13/10 13/14 15/18
15/22 17/21 17/23
19/8 23/9 26/18
29/19 30/2 35/12
38/22 52/21 62/3
62/18 64/1 64/2
64/3 66/7 66/18
70/16 81/23 84/12
85/2 85/5 85/7
110/17 110/18
110/21 110/23
114/3 115/2 115/3
120/4 120/19 121/2
121/8 121/22
122/13 122/17
126/12 131/17
anybody [13] 15/7
15/22 24/10 38/22
64/14 103/14
103/16 113/5
116/10 116/18
117/1 129/5 129/21
anyone [11] 14/17
62/18 64/20 66/8
66/16 66/17 81/22
84/4 103/4 110/9
120/4

anything [S] 33/20

62/13 75/16 123/10
123/16

anyway [9] 17/21
33/20 37/14 59/14
59/18 80/12 83/1
104/19 104/21
anyways [1] 92/16
apologize [1] 48/14
apparent [1] 29/12
Appeals [2] 2/16
2/20

appear [2] 25/17
26/6
APPEARANCES
[3] 1/23 3/10 3/21
appears [1] 97/2
applicable [3]
24/17 43/18 87/10
application [S] 26/3
27/19 37/1 41/20
43/5

applied [17] 18/13
20/12 36/8 37/3
39/6 40/23 44/19
46/5 51/18 51/18
51/20 51/22 54/19
54/20 56/13 88/9
101/16

applies [8] 21/15
39/8 42/17 43/1
43/3 54/9 54/14
71/23

apply [26] 21/8
22/2 24/20 30/8
30/10 30/19 32/18
33/22 34/19 36/12
36/15 36/20 38/2
54/9 55/1 60/14
60/18 60/21 61/1
85/4 86/12 87/23
88/14 93/8 94/11
94/19

applying [14] 19/5
23/11 29/15 36/18
37/7 37/8 37/17
37/18 38/6 55/6
71/7 71/21 87/21
88/6

appreciate [11] 5/4
11/23 13/8 13/20
95/23 111/4 114/13
127/1 127/16
128/21 130/6
appreciative [1]
127/18

approach [2] 83/16
129/11
appropriate [6]
11/5 22/19 30/15
32/18 41/21 106/8
approval [1] 13/22
are [196]

area [8] 29/1 54/12
54/15 55/14 60/19




A

area... [3] 61/3 72/4
83/7

areas [1] 70/21
aren't [2] 56/19
98/11

arguing [1] 69/11
argument [1] 37/13
arguments [1]
68/22

Arizona [5] 21/21
22/7 22/12 35/18
35/22

Arizona's [1] 36/10
Arnold [1] 8/20
around [4] 42/1
57/13 111/9 118/18
arrangements [1]
61/12

arranging [1]
107/18

artifact [1] 79/22
as [63] 5/7 5/11
5/11 5/23 9/5 9/6
13/1 16/21 17/19
18/8 22/12 24/7
27/9 27/10 35/4
41/7 44/15 44/15
44/20 48/5 51/10
51/15 56/2 56/2
56/3 59/2 59/2
59/12 59/21 68/9

68/20 72/6 84/3
86/3 86/3 86/4
87/13 91/2 98/18
102/12 105/10
105/11 105/23
106/16 106/17
107/17 111/12
112/1 112/2 112/21
114/15 115/23
116/4 118/8 118/18
118/22 118/22
121/13 122/7 123/7
124/9 132/1 132/2
ask [13] 23/10
23/12 24/19 42/2
74/9 79/9 80/20
91/10 97/17 105/13
116/6 116/16
121/21

asking [1] 89/5
aspect [2] 30/3
113/16

assist [3] 5/20 66/20
66/20

assistance [1] 125/3
Associate [2] 3/1
3/16

assume [3] 79/6
83/7 90/7
assuming [2] 15/13
91/4

assumption [3]

23/23 96/9 111/19
assumptions [4]
53/19 94/14 94/16
95/5

Atlanta [2] 29/1
29/3

attach [1] 51/7
attached [1] 102/13
attachment [1]
89/7

attend [4] 116/11
116/19 117/2 117/7
attendance [1] 6/9
attending [1]
121/10

attorney [15] 2/13
2/16 3/4 3/6 3/8
3/13 3/16 3/19 8/3
24/23 25/1 33/4
39/15 92/15 131/17
Attorney's [1] 2/9
attorneys [3] 25/2
30/2 96/19
AUBREY [2] 2/18
6/22

AUGUST [6] 1/4
1/20 12/20 12/23
16/8 131/12
August 2nd [1]
16/8
authorization [2]
11/10 11/15




A

automatic [3] 35/4
35/5 42/17
automatically [1]
35/1

available [4] 24/8
100/18 101/9
117722

average [4] 50/8
53/9 57/8 100/8
avoid [1] 89/13
aware [3] 11/7
126/19 126/23
away [4] 99/8 99/22
113/5 125/8

B

back [25] 25/20
49/1 56/21 61/10
62/21 63/14 64/8
67/8 70/1 80/21
83/17 84/22 87/6
89/15 89/17 91/1
101/21 108/6
108/13 112/11
122/20 123/21
125/11 126/1 129/3
backing [1] 113/5
bad [2] 33/14
104/17

balance [3] 96/4
120/9 121/17

BALDWIN [8] 2/8
8/14 14/6 30/5
84/19 91/5 96/22
97/16

Baldwin's [2] 89/18
90/15

ballpark [1] 119/15

balls [1] 120/9

barrier [1] 101/12

based [12] 32/5
35/6 36/1 45/13
52/2 63/7 71/1
71/13 77/5 97/19
97/23 124/2

basic [10] 19/6
20/12 36/19 36/21
37/1 37/7 37/9 42/9
70/15 72/18

basically [1] 106/11

basics [1] 85/16

be [125] 5/18 6/19
8/511/7 11/20
17/18 18/10 19/12
19/21 20/8 20/11
21/4 21/11 23/5
23/13 24/8 25/14
27/13 29/21 30/21
30/22 32/17 32/23
33/21 35/5 35/8
39/11 39/15 39/16
39/18 42/15 42/17
42/18 43/2 43/3

43/4 43/15 44/4
44/15 44/18 45/16
47/18 48/8 48/9
48/10 49/14 50/19
51/14 51/17 54/17
54/20 55/18 56/13
56/17 56/22 60/7
60/22 65/17 69/10
70/270/3 72/23
75/1 78/5 78/11
79/20 81/7 82/4
82/11 84/23 85/1
85/5 86/23 87/15
87/18 90/13 90/16
90/17 91/7 91/11
91/11 91/12 92/1
93/19 95/16 96/2
97/5 98/6 99/17
100/2 100/8 100/11
100720 101/12
101/16 102/1
103/11 104/3 104/7
104/13 105/12
106/6 106/8 106/13
107/1 107/19
107/22 108/1 108/7
109/7 109/23 114/8
115/7 117/7 117/22
118/11 119/15
120/3 124/4 124/15
126/1 126/6 129/7
129/15 130/3




B

BEACH [4] 2/11
7/13 25/8 62/9
bear [1] 86/10
bearing [1] 93/6
because [54] 15/14
21/9 21/14 22/22
28/17 38/11 38/16
38/18 43/18 43/20
45/20 49/22 49/23
50/8 51/6 52/1
52/13 53/15 54/1
54/8 54/10 54/13
66/12 69/3 69/19
70/15 71/10 73/3
73/12 76/14 78/3
78/15 79/2 80/7
81/4 81/15 84/16
85/14 86/17 86/22
88/10 89/14 90/19
90/20 91/18 99/4
102/4 107/23
109/18 113/20
114/12 123/9
127/18 129/20
been [19] 9/5 26/5
27/7 60/10 68/16
68/19 70/21 93/20
105/19 110/4
121/10 122/8
122/16 122/18
123/3 123/6 124/11

127/3 127/9
before [19] 1/16
15/22 16/8 17/22
28/18 29/9 42/13
44/2 46/1 58/8
58/19 64/4 73/22
74/19 75/17 82/6
111/1 119/16 131/8
begging [1] 93/1
beginning [2]
115/21 117/6
behalf [1] 127/17
behaviorally [1]
27/23
behind [1] 126/5
being [19] 9/6
30/18 31/14 31/22
35/9 42/7 46/5 49/2
75/20 77/14 85/8
85/15 87/3 107/10
107/11 107/13
108/19 113/13
124/9
believe [6] 6/17
6/18 8/4 59/1
115/16 125/1
below [5] 43/15
71/17 85/18 102/4
132/3
benefit [3] 61/17
88/2 93/10
benefits [3] 19/17

97/10 105/8
best [7] 45/20 106/7
106/15 107/2 107/3
118/3 120/11
Betson [1] 73/3
better [12] 73/5
74/8 76/10 76/20
77/12 77/13 77/17
77/21 86/7 93/4
107/22 108/18
between [3] 46/7
52/16 96/5
beyond [2] 29/14
55/21
big [4] 28/11 28/15
56/15 91/3
bigger [1] 29/13
binding [1] 63/9
Birmingham [2]
3/5 3/7
bit [12] 20/6 23/3
36/17 41/6 46/16
47/19 68/5 69/16
72/11 72/13 103/6
105/20
BLACKBURN [2]
3/13 9/10
blue [1] 51/3
board [3] 31/8
113/9 132/1
BOB [17] 3/18 6/3
8/18 9/14 12/9 13/7




B

BOB... [11] 61/4
67/8 80/21 115/14
121/3 125/10
125/22 129/3 129/6
129/21 129/23
bogged [1] 112/16
Boggs [8] 1/17 3/11
3/11 5/8 5/14 9/4
131/4 132/9
books [1] 87/4
boom [2] 69/17
69/22

borne [1] 92/5
both [36] 21/23
30/9 30/11 30/16
30/19 30/20 31/4
34/19 36/15 37/18
37/19 38/6 38/7
46/5 53/8 54/7
67/14 82/9 82/14
87/10 87/21 88/1
90/1 90/2 92/8
93/12 96/17 99/19
100/3 101/23
109/12 109/22
109/22 114/7
114/10 120/11
bottom [6] 36/14
41/14 44/6 55/4
95/7 98/10
bought [4] 75/17

75/19 75/23 76/6
BRS5 [2] 67/22
122/5

Brady [2] 61/5
83/18
brainstorm [1]
26/19
brainstorming [1]
120/22

break [2] 11/6
25/14

BRIAN [4] 3/1 8/17
108/21 117/13
bring [3] 20/19
102/14 108/5
bringing [2] 50/18
98/13

brought [1] 40/5
building [3] 34/9
34/10 105/23
built [2] 35/2 68/3
bump [1] 80/3
bunch [5] 18/7 28/6
39/12 61/5 83/18
burden [5] 29/21
33/10 40/9 85/21
86/10
burdensome [1]
44/16

bureau [4] 50/12
74/5 76/23 104/10
Burks [1] 7/6

BUSH [2] 2/137/20
business [1] 28/2
buy [2] 76/576/19

C

calculate [6] 21/6
32/11 47/1 53/14
55/16 77/4
calculated [4] 21/4
42/5 43/11 74/10
calculating [1]
40/13

calculation [6]
18/10 32/23 40/12
43/19 78/1 107/9
calculations [4]
24/6 41/11 85/2
107/11

calendar [3] 118/23
119/4 119/6
California [1]
113/22

call [4] 6/3 6/7
28/16 129/23
called [3] 74/17
74/20 85/8

calling [1] 5/17
came [2] 11/4 68/2
can [77] 11/6 11/7
13/9 14/11 15/5
17/1 18/10 22/8
22/14 23/10 27/4
34/6 37/23 40/8




C

can... [63] 40/11
41/8 41/9 44/4 44/5
44/6 45/2 45/12
45/13 47/3 47/5
47/10 51/22 52/13
52/17 52/18 54/23
56/12 56/21 57/11
57/12 57/13 61/1
61/4 61/6 61/7 67/4
70/11 71/4 71/20
72/1 72/9 73/10
73/15 83/17 86/23
87/22 88/18 89/10
93/3 95/14 95/19
99/21 101/10 106/7
106/15 107/2 107/4
111/14 111/15
113/17 113/19
115/20 118/4
119/13 120/9
120/11 122/20
123/8 123/11
123/15 125/10
127/21

can't [7] 38/2 51/13
57/6 84/15 94/13
97/12 119/7
cannot [7] 14/17
64/15 64/15 65/10
116/11 116/19
117/2

cap [1] 79/3
capital [2] 75/1
127/14

captured [2] 75/21
78/22

captures [2] 77/21
120/8

capturing [1] 76/20
caretaker [1] 17/7
Carolina [4] 83/8
83/9 83/10 83/10
carries [1] 70/8
carry [1] 15/16
cars [1] 68/19

case [31] 20/16 21/5
23/7 36/10 36/12
45/14 47/22 48/4
48/7 49/1 49/4 49/4
49/5 49/6 49/15
50/5 50/6 51/6 53/9
53/17 53/23 54/10
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food [1] 68/19
football [4] 128/1
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95/9 96/4 98/3
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78/3 111/17
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frame [1] 120/2
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free [2] 105/15
118/21

freeing [1] 50/21
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102/8
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furniture [3] 75/18
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general [3] 15/21
28/5 55/23
generalize [1]
98/23
generally [3] 23/22
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25/17 25/17 28/17
37/23 38/16 40/7
42/14 72/5 72/6
83/1 83/18 88/2
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93/12 95/14 102/18
104/21 107/3 113/4
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118/12 119/10
126/21 127/21
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gets [5] 21/19 35/1
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27/10 31/19 33/19
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45/11 49/13 50/7
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87/2 89/15 89/17
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66/19 88/18 117/17
119/11
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89/16 120/15
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glad [1] 105/18
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39/4 39/7 41/23
47/15 53/1 53/23
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103/20 104/22
111/23 114/21
118/3 124/17 128/7
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106/17
going [71] 6/17
10/19 16/12 16/16
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26/11 26/17 27/9
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32/19 33/6 34/1
39/14 39/15 39/16
39/18 44/15 48/8
49/14 49/16 56/5
56/22 57/14 57/16
57/21 60/11 68/16
68/19 70/1 70/2
70/13 70/17 80/8
80/17 80/20 89/1
89/9 93/19 94/18
95/6 96/19 97/7
99/17 101/18 102/1
102/17 102/18
102/23 103/6
104/12 104/21
105/1 105/2 107/21
111/9 111/19
114/23 118/6 122/4
122/13 124/4 125/8
129/13

gone [2] 95/10
114/1

good [26] 5/15 9/19
11/17 11/20 12/6
12/7 13/19 16/21
23/5 26/19 27/17
33/13 45/22 56/2

60/7 66/2 67/16
70/5 80/6 96/5
104/22 105/20
107/5 108/22
120/23 126/11
goods [1] 68/18
got [5] 11/13 47/8
47/22 93/22 119/6
gotten [4] 5/15 69/5
107/12 112/16
government [1]
92/1

grade [1] 28/11
granted [1] 29/8
graph [1] 52/21
GRAY [5] 3/1 8/17
105/4 110/23 112/2
Gray's [1] 113/15
greater [1] 47/4
green [2] 47/21
48/23

Greg [1] 7/18
gross [8] 21/2 45/4
46/22 51/10 54/2
74/21 74/22 77/9
Groundhog [1]
80/10

group [6] 44/19
66/10 66/10 66/20
124/21 125/9
groups [3] 120/4
120/6 120/19

growth [1] 44/8
guess [16] 31/2
34/17 43/2 45/9
64/1 65/20 67/7
84/23 94/2 100/4
100/5 109/18
111/11 121/3 124/7
124/11
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guidelines [11] 1/2
1/16 5/3 56/8 95/10
99/18 99/19 112/22
114/1 130/11
131/10

guy [1] 105/7
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habits [1] 78/8
had [32] 6/17 8/4
11/3 13/13 18/6
18/6 18/7 20/6
21/10 23/4 29/5
31/22 49/9 53/4
68/15 69/3 73/22
78/12 79/16 84/7
84/19 101/14 107/7
113/23 114/2 114/3
116/3 122/15
122/17 122/18
126/20 127/23
half [2] 117/8 117/9
HALL [3] 3/4 9/2
117/4
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hand [17] 14/10
14/11 14/18 14/21
15/2 15/8 15/12
17/3 64/10 64/16
64/22 65/1 65/7
94/7 94/8 116/13
117/14

hands [2] 14/15
65/9

happen [2] 46/8
111/9

happened [4] 32/21
32/21 69/18 69/19
happening [3]
50/20 55/20 102/7
happens [1] 82/7
hard [3] 111/7
118/11 119/21
has [37] 5/15 11/19
12/3 21/17 22/4
22/5 27/13 33/8
37/9 40/20 40/23
45/4 46/2 48/3
55/10 60/10 69/19
78/15 78/21 81/23
89/1 92/19 93/20
95/15 101/2 103/5
107/17 109/9
109/15 110/4
110/15 111/13
119/18 120/14

123/3 123/6 124/10
hasn't [3] 26/5
69/18 122/9

have [216]

haven't [5] 27/18
93/14 103/23 104/3
126/19

having [21] 23/6
24/5 24/6 25/16
29/20 35/3 39/13
42/8 46/13 50/9
50/12 56/12 68/10
78/6 87/23 105/9
108/4 108/5 119/12
126/6 130/3

he [23] 6/16 6/17
6/18 6/19 19/15
24/17 24/18 33/8
45/12 85/18 89/6
89/14 96/14 97/12
97/12 97/13 97/13
99/4 100/20 101/14
114/2 114/3 127/12
head [1] 122/6
heads [1] 111/9
health [6] 19/7
19/16 36/16 36/22
37/4 37/10
healthcare [1] 18/8
hear [7] 13/21 14/3
57/19 61/9 66/11
69/7 104/8

heard [5] 26/2 43/6
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128/18
hearing [12] 8/5
13/17 18/2 24/6
24/18 24/18 28/15
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104/6 104/13
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75/13
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126/1
helping [1] 96/1
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here [31] 6/8 7/1
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10/6 10/12 21/20
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40/8 45/19 46/19
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here... [9] 54/16
55/5 67/19 69/12
82/13 96/2 104/14
106/2 127/13

hesitancy [2]
112/12 112/20

Hi[1] 9/17

high [2] 68/5 95/18

higher [12] 19/19
21/16 70/15 72/2
72/5 72/6 73/15
73/16 76/13 76/14
76/16 78/11

highlighted [2]
81/1 83/13

him [3] 89/5 89/8
89/12

his [5] 20/19 33/9
49/23 89/2 111/4

history [1] 114/2

hit [1] 11/19

hits [1] 99/6

HOA [1] 75/8
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6/10 6/13 6/15 6/20
6/227/37/5 9/7

hope [1] 36/23

hour [8] 24/2 29/2
48/2 48/15 48/19
97/18 98/15 114/19
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98/6 98/7 99/5
114/16 117/22

house [1] 33/8

household [2] 22/5
36/5

housekeeping [1]
15/18

housing [1] 74/23

how [26] 18/5
21/22 25/4 31/20
39/20 42/21 48/11
49/2 60/13 71/19
74/6 74/9 74/10
74/18 75/11 77/1
77/22 81/16 87/19
88/9 98/4 102/5
107/9 113/11 114/3
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86/8

Hoyem [1] 12/15

huge [1] 93/6
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hurting [1] 94/2

I
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I'm [6] 15/13 69/6
91/4 92/13 93/21
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I've [1] 103/1

idea [5] 25/16 28/17

113/6 121/15
122/19

ideas [1] 120/23
identify [4] 5/13
62/6 77/13 99/22
identifying [2] 5/15
100/22

ignore [1] 47/3

ill [1] 127/11
imagine [1] 26/10
impact [4] 68/7
81/16 82/21 113/18
impacted [1] 109/9
impacting [1] 87/1
important [3] 5/6
40/4 40/5
impossible [1]
109/21

impressed [2] 15/4
111/13

improved [7] 73/12
74/6 74/9 77/1
77/20 77/22 78/1
improvement [3]
74/16 76/21 76/22
improvements [1]
73/20

imputation [1]
101/3

impute [S] 90/18
97/3 97/17 100/5
114/22
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imputed [9] 82/9
91/11 91/12 96/17
97/11 99/1 99/17
100/6 114/10

imputing [7] 90/1
92/7 96/8 96/11
96/12 101/23 114/6

inappropriate [1]
30/10

incarceration [1]
114/3

incentive [4] 25/20
26/5 51/12 100/11

include [1] 75/3

included [5] 75/6
75/7 75/7 75/8 75/8

includes [3] 75/12
75/12 75/16

including [2] 37/12
113/13

inclusion [1] 84/8

income [106] 15/20
16/9 16/20 19/1
19/10 19/12 19/14
21/2 21/16 22/4
24/16 25/6 26/3
27/19 34/14 34/20
35/6 36/5 39/17
39/21 43/8 43/19
43/21 44/9 45/4
46/22 47/2 47/4

47/7 47/23 48/3
48/4 48/7 48/20
50/14 51/8 51/9
51/10 51/11 52/4
53/8 54/7 54/8
54/10 54/13 54/15
54/22 55/10 55/14
70/15 71/4 71/11
71/14 71/17 72/2
72/4 73/1 73/5
73/13 73/17 74/7
74/9 74/13 74/14
77/9 77/11 77/14
77/22 77/23 78/10
78/11 78/15 78/17
79/2 79/4 79/7
79/10 79/16 79/18
80/5 80/16 81/13
82/5 83/6 83/8 90/1
90/7 90/18 91/8
91/11 92/8 95/13
96/8 96/12 96/12
97/22 99/1 99/14
101/3 101/9 112/9
112/17 113/12
114/6 114/10
114/22

incomes [17] 19/19
19/21 31/4 31/5
59/15 61/2 67/23
71/3 71/8 71/21
71/23 72/5 73/15

76/13 76/15 80/2
81/14

incorrectly [1]
113/8

increase [5] 27/12
29/6 56/13 68/4
69/16

increased [1] 78/21
increases [5] 71/6
76/13 76/14 79/1
111/10

incredibly [1]
107/15

incurring [1] 91/14
indeed [1] 56/11
independent [1]
120/14

indicate [1] 96/14
indicated [1]
119/19

indicator [1] 114/8
individual [1] 25/3
industry [1] 70/1
infinite [1] 41/16
inflation [6] 68/3
68/7 68/10 69/2
69/12 69/13
inflationary [1]
78/5

information [16]
12/10 12/15 18/14
25/21 26/12 27/10
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information... [10]
45/11 52/20 73/5
74/8 77/12 81/16
83/19 101/13
107/19 119/13
informed [1] 27/23
infrequent [1] 19/9
initially [1] 58/3
instance [4] 17/11
34/18 69/6 92/2
instead [3] 17/7
34/9 71/7
insurance [7] 19/8
19/16 36/16 36/22
37/5 37/11 91/23
intent [1] 41/3
intentions [1] 56/2
interact [1] 60/14
interest [1] 103/5
interested [1]
131/20

Internet [2] 78/12
78/16

interrupt [1] 22/14
involved [1] 25/1
involves [1] 106/19
involving [2] 53/13
111/6

Iowa [1] 100/13

is [311]

isn't [6] 57/4 60/3

78/9 98/1 98/17
111/19

issue [11] 26/23
40/21 50/2 50/10
51/1 54/11 56/4
98/12 104/8 104/13
123/9

issues [8] 26/23
28/3 54/2 69/7 69/9
120/6 122/9 123/23
it [367]
it's [112] 15/14
16/21 21/1 21/6
21/6 22/11 22/18
22/21 22/21 22/22
23/8 25/2 25/12
26/11 27/8 27/11
28/6 29/13 30/14
31/12 33/13 33/14
33/19 35/1 36/6
36/7 36/8 38/18
39/18 41/6 41/12
41/13 41/13 41/21
44/4 44/13 44/14
44/19 45/1 45/5
45/6 45/6 45/8
45/10 45/20 45/22
46/3 46/3 46/4
47/14 48/8 49/5
49/5 49/22 50/23
51/8 51/19 55/20
55/21 57/4 57/14

58/15 60/5 65/16
69/1 69/21 70/1
70/270/5 70/13
70/16 70/17 70/21
71/16 72/21 75/2
76/10 77/5 79/6
79/8 80/9 81/17
82/16 82/19 85/10
88/21 91/1 91/2
93/11 93/19 96/8
96/9 96/17 96/17
97/6 98/1 99/17
101/7 101/7 104/1
104/2 104/8 107/8
107/21 109/12
109/21 112/17
114/18 119/17
126/17 127/19
128/3

its [1] 104/18
itself [1] 108/12
IV [11] 25/5 26/9
26/20 27/1 28/5
32/22 39/22 40/2
59/3 59/14 92/21
IV-D [11] 25/5 26/9
26/20 27/1 28/5
32/22 39/22 40/2
59/3 59/14 92/21
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JANE [14] 2/3 16/2
22/15 39/3 57/23
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JANE... [9] 61/10
65/18 65/20 66/19
67/11 96/1 110/21
124/17 128/9
January [1] 68/15
Jeana [6] 1/17 3/11
5/8 5/9 131/4 132/9
Jeana's [1] 61/16
Jeffries [1] 8/6
JENNIFER [11]
2/13 7/20 7/22
61/23 119/18
123/13 123/15
123/20 123/22
129/4 129/19
Jersey [1] 22/5
Jim [1] 8/6
Joan [2] 7/23 8/2
job [16] 31/7 49/23
91/19 91/22 96/15
98/4 98/6 99/7 99/8
99/9 104/18 106/7
106/15 107/5
108/22 114/18
jobs [1] 109/10
join [5] 5/5 6/19 8/6
12/21 110/14
joined [3] 12/3 63/1
110/15
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37/19 37/22 37/23
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judge [34] 2/16
2/18 7/2 14/22
21/19 21/20 26/22
31/9 31/18 31/21
32/20 33/6 40/4
40/15 45/12 45/13
58/22 62/4 63/1
89/18 90/15 91/4
91/10 92/16 95/8
96/4 96/12 98/3
110/15 114/15
118/4 123/4 123/4
123/5

judges [6] 23/6
23/22 29/20 96/19
97/17 127/13

judicial [1] 22/10
Julie [2] 7/3 9/7
July [4] 12/17 68/2
68/8 70/7

July 12 [1] 12/17

jump [1] 67/13
June [4] 21/23 68/1
68/8 70/5

June 2021 [1] 68/1

jurisdictions [1]
100/16

just [109] 6/7 6/8
7/9 11/13 11/14
12/12 15/13 15/21
16/21 18/5 19/6

20/7 20/19 22/7
22/11 22/21 28/1
28/4 29/2 30/4
30/15 30/15 33/11
33/21 34/8 34/8
35/5 36/9 37/18
38/11 39/4 39/5
41/22 42/18 43/14
43/21 44/14 44/21
45/2 45/20 45/21
46/15 47/5 47/14
47/16 48/13 49/20
50/23 51/6 52/1
53/19 57/20 58/8
58/10 58/10 58/14
58/16 58/20 59/11
59/20 60/14 62/10
62/22 66/12 66/21
67/13 68/2 69/1
69/3 69/15 72/13
73/11 73/11 77/18
78/5 79/10 79/23
80/7 80/16 82/12
82/15 84/20 85/15
86/6 87/3 91/2
92/16 93/19 94/3
94/13 102/6 103/1
103720 104/3 105/7
107/23 108/15
111/8 112/5 112/9
112/13 112/21
118/6 122/3 122/9
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just... [4] 126/3
126/15 127/20
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Karen [1] 7/5
KATIE [3] 3/8 8/8
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Katie's [1] 15/12
keep [10] 35/3 41/1
59/11 59/20 60/16
80/10 95/3 106/3
110/5 112/21
keeping [3] 58/11
105/22 107/6

kept [1] 106/17
kind [21] 17/13
44/21 51/3 57/20
58/6 69/20 87/22
88/13 92/3 100/19
101/10 103/9
108/22 111/1 111/8
119/17 119/18
125/14 127/19
129/10 129/16
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14/1 63/22

know [142]
knowledge [1]
40/22

knows [3] 55/19
116/19 117/1
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76/23 89/7
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language [6] 16/19
16/22 28/11 35/22
36/2 85/9
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18/6 48/17 49/6
51/19 51/20 68/13
71/19 85/11 94/15
94/17 126/20 128/4
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lead [2] 16/3 120/22
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leaning [3] 110/6
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Legal [1] 3/19
legalese [1] 28/6
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47/7 49/9 49/13
52/11 53/5 53/7
71/8 81/13 98/2
99/4 100/1 104/2
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42/2 42/17 48/13
96/19 103/1 106/16
115/11 116/6
116/13 116/15
121/21 129/6
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let's [13] 35/16 42/6
46/17 47/16 52/23
63/8 67/13 82/14
103/11 103/20
116/7 118/21
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letting [1] 77/3
level [7] 2/13 51/11
52/3 71/2 94/18
108/8 112/11
levels [4] 68/1
68/16 70/13 95/14
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license [3] 50/11
89/11 104/9
licensed [1] 131/23
light [1] 51/3
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10/7 10/13 12/13
14/18 16/17 17/5
17/11 23/10 24/10
25/15 25/19 31/8
35/13 38/12 43/8
45/18 46/2 47/11
57/1 59/23 62/20
64/12 64/17 66/11
66/19 67/10 70/23
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83/4 83/15 86/20
87/14 88/5 88/18
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102/11 104/3 104/9
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111/17 112/3
114/17 117/6 118/2
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120/4 122/7 127/19
129/7 129/15
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76/17 76/18
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32/7 32/17 34/13
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107/20 109/18
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LLC[1] 3/11
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33/6 33/7 35/19
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128/22
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33/17 68/13 89/21
114/2 120/18
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105/7 105/11
119/18
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62/20 70/23 102/5
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Lord [1] 132/5
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lot [23] 17/4 23/19
25/1 25/6 28/4
35/11 39/20 40/1
50/4 52/20 56/18
59/17 68/22 81/11




L M

lot... [9] 89/397/8 ma'am [9] 6/6
102/3 106/21 107/8 | 12/12 32/2 38/20
107/18 109/10 62/15 92/12 105/5
111/14 113/20 117/16 121/6
loud [2] 43/13 Macon [2] 2/19
101/16 29/2

low [30] 15/20 16/9 MADDOX [1] 3/18
16/20 19/10 19/12 made [1] 119/11
19/14 19/21 24/16 |magical [1] 35/8
25/6 26/3 27/19 magnets [2] 28/12
39/17 39/21 52/14 | 28/13

54/8 54/13 54/22 |main [1] 122/9
74/8 74/13 74/13  maintaining [2]
77/23 78/15 78/17 | 124/7 124/8

79/1 80/2 80/16 majority [6] 53/15
86/21 112/8 112/17 | 63/10 65/16 98/23
113/12 115/19 116/3
low-income [13] make [43] 11/7
15/20 16/9 16/20 20/22 21/19 23/23
19/10 24/16 25/6 28/9 30/10 32/19
27/19 39/17 54/8 33/3 33/23 34/9
54/13 54/22 80/16 | 38/19 40/16 45/13
112/17 51/23 55/11 58/15
lower [11] 21/13 59/1 60/1 60/5
33/18 51/5 52/4 62/23 70/14 77/17
52/12 81/12 81/14 | 84/15 84/16 86/16
82/1 95/6 124/13 87/10 88/15 89/12
126/8 92/13 92/17 100/11
lowering [1] 113/19|100/14 102/11

102/17 108/5

108/18 108/19

110/22 111/23
119/14 122/3
122/13 123/1
makes [8] 21/1 37/2
45/21 56/4 56/7
56/9 58/20 107/20
making [12] 29/5
33/13 48/18 56/15
58/18 95/1 97/12
99/4 101/14 121/18
123/5 127/16
MALLORY [4] 3/4
9/1 117/3 118/13
mandatory [1] 45/1
many [6] 27/2
27/14 39/21 56/19
59/13 110/5
March [1] 11/17
March 31st [1]
11/17

marginally [1]
114/15
Marie [2] 7/23 8/2
market [1] 51/1
match [1] 80/4
matched [1] 53/12
math [1] 44/4
mathematical [1]
66/14
mathematically [5]
20/9 43/22 44/13
88/14 88/22




M

matrix [1] 16/13
MATT [3] 2/20
6/13 12/3

matter [4] 44/23
45/8 87/8 131/7
matters [1] 45/10
maximum [1] 72/9
may [18] 8/5 21/23
23/5 23/5 24/3
30/20 82/2 87/8
87/18 97/4 106/16
107/19 109/7
120/21 120/22
121/10 122/18
129/23

maybe [35] 28/22
31/6 32/6 50/10
59/15 61/5 66/22
68/4 68/6 70/14
72/13 84/10 90/14
91/7 91/17 91/21
93/13 104/16
104/17 106/21
112/7 112/17 116/2
116/2 119/8 120/15
122/7 123/22
125/10 125/19
129/3 129/4 129/4
129/11 129/12
McClenney [1]
8/11

McMillan [1] 6/16
me [21] 42/2 48/13
53/13 62/10 64/8
64/14 66/13 85/10
85/20 86/16 96/20
97/21 103/1 108/16
109/14 111/6
115/11 116/3 116/6
116/15 121/21
mean [33] 25/19
25/21 29/8 33/10
35/6 35/15 39/20
45/9 46/7 49/11
49/21 50/22 56/16
57/20 66/15 71/2
78/10 82/3 88/13
89/14 92/18 92/21
93/11 95/7 99/19
102/5 102/11
102/18 104/16
111/22 117/21
118/15 119/1
meaning [1] 69/1
means [5] 33/5
49/19 88/1 94/12
102/15
meantime [1] 129/3
measure [8] 73/12
74/7 74/17 74/21
74/22 75/10 77/20
77/22
measured [1] 77/1

measurement [1]
76/11
measurements [4]
72/19 73/4 75/4
75/5
measures [1] 74/5
media [2] 12/11
12/14
median [3] 49/3
53/14 101/4
Medicaid [1] 19/13
medical [1] 91/23
meet [9] 72/22
115/20 116/4 119/8
119/12 119/21
120/16 123/16
127/6
meeting [10] 1/1
1/16 12/22 111/2
115/15 115/23
117/8 118/19
129/12 130/12
meetings [6] 6/8
12/13 58/5 96/3
126/17 126/21
MELODY [13] 2/8
8/14 14/5 14/7 30/5
32/1 84/18 88/5
92/10 96/21 97/15
98/12 125/17
Melody's [2] 99/14
114/17




M

member [3] 13/22
63/2 64/23
members [20] 2/5
6/4 12/1 12/18 13/8
14/14 65/6 81/12
103/22 110/13
110/18 115/18
115/19 116/9
118/11 121/9
121/23 131/15
131/18 131/19
memo [4] 16/8 39/1
67/8 125/23
memorandum [1]
22/1

mentally [1] 110/5
mentioned [3]
31/22 109/15
110/11

message [1] 39/10
met [2] 112/22
127/4

Michael [1] 6/20
might [32] 6/19
17/18 19/12 19/21
25/14 30/9 31/9
31/11 33/21 47/18
48/9 48/10 55/18
56/17 57/1 66/20
67/2 70/9 79/2
89/19 90/13 90/13

92/1 98/4 98/5 98/6
98/16 99/12 100/11
100/20 104/2
124/15
mimic [1] 18/20
mimics [3] 18/14
74/20 75/10
mind [3] 31/2 103/6
103/18
mindfulness [1]
11/23
minds [1] 84/2
minimum [30] 24/1
31/4 48/2 48/9 71/6
81/5 82/8 82/13
85/16 90/1 91/19
94/11 95/1 97/3
98/2 98/9 99/2
101/5 101/23 109/6
111/10 111/19
113/1 124/9 124/14
124/22 125/6 125/8
126/6 126/7
minimum-waged
[1] 31/4
minute [2] 11/4
22/15
minutes [1] 103/12
model [1] 107/2
modifications [2]
27/23 28/1
money [2] 81/14

89/5
Montgomery [10]
1/19 2/14 2/17 2/21
3/9 3/12 3/14 3/17
3/20 131/3
month [20] 34/14
47/23 48/18 50/7
52/7 52/19 53/10
54/1 54/5 57/8
57/11 71/5 72/17
74/19 76/7 83/13
90/3 90/18 94/20
95/2
monthly [4] 21/2
44/8 46/22 76/7
months [3] 83/5
96/3 109/1
Moore [1] 2/16
more [53] 21/6
21/16 26/7 33/3
36/17 36/19 37/2
45/21 46/22 47/3
56/8 56/10 67/2
70/16 72/6 73/4
73/18 73/21 74/2
75/11 76/15 76/16
76/17 76/18 77/19
78/6 79/4 79/7
79/10 80/5 89/5
91/16 92/5 92/5
92/9 93/2 93/3
93/19 94/4 95/2




M

more... [13] 95/16
96/9 97/12 99/14
99/23 100/23 101/7
107/13 109/19
109/19 118/11
127/5 130/2
Morgan [1] 2/11
morning [7] 6/18
9/3 9/4 9/20 12/6
12/8 117/18
mortgage [5] 75/3
75/12 75/14 76/17
77/21

most [21] 27/3
28/22 35/14 35/15
37/21 45/7 50/6
50/16 56/22 58/20
59/5 59/13 68/20
70/12 79/7 83/3
92/21 98/10 111/17
122/15 127/5
motion [4] 13/21
14/8 15/15 63/13
motivating [1] 57/4
move [13] 14/2 18/3
32/7 41/23 43/9
43/14 43/23 44/6
47/10 52/23 55/2
57/13 70/18
moved [1] 58/6
Ms. [3] 5/14 9/4

125/20

Ms. Boggs [2] 5/14
9/4

Ms. Palmer [1]
125/20

much [15] 15/6
26/7 48/11 49/2
57/17 69/3 74/18
76/10 77/17 82/21
85/21 102/22
107/22 112/12
112/19

multiple [1] 17/4
multiplied [1] 52/3
multiply [1] 18/22
murder [1] 127/14
mute [7] 14/18 15/9
61/7 64/17 103/17
116/13 129/20
muted [6] 61/22
62/2 62/13 117/4
117/15 118/4
muting [1] 65/13
my [16] 14/21
22/17 24/12 31/2
58/21 67/18 87/5
87/12 87/22 90/12
96/8 104/4 107/1
118/18 120/3 132/3

N

name [3] 6/7 60/6
132/3

NATHAN [3] 3/15
9/12 9/15
necessarily [2]
16/15 30/21
necessary [1] 37/2
need [21] 21/5 23/2
29/23 31/10 57/19
82/10 84/14 86/16
91/1 92/13 106/13
106/14 106/22
115/6 116/4 121/19
122/10 122/10
123/10 123/23
126/21
needed [2] 108/20
126/12
needle [1] 70/18
needs [5] 45/15
89/14 91/6 106/6
125/3
negligible [1] 70/17
neighboring [1]
17/9
neither [1] 131/16
net [5] 54/3 71/11
71/13 71/17 77/9
never [7] 27/5 36/9
57/21 89/9 93/7
95/14 104/12
new [20] 18/16 19/3
20/15 20/21 21/14
21/18 22/5 33/10




N

new... [12] 34/13
42/13 42/15 43/8
43/15 48/9 72/19
73/16 110/13
110/14 123/4 125/7
newer [1] 110/17
news [1] 66/2
next [10] 17/13
39/7 55/4 59/16
70/22 72/14 98/5
111/2 115/15
115/23

nine [1] 67/12
ninety [2] 5/22 5/23
ninety-five [2] 5/22
5/23

no [57] 6/11 6/14
6/217/47/7 7/17
7/19 8/1 8/7 8/12
8/21 9/8 10/3 10/9
10/15 13/16 15/11
16/1 16/23 18/1
18/12 24/13 30/1
36/11 39/2 39/10
48/3 52/22 61/20
62/15 62/19 64/5
64/19 65/5 65/9
65/14 67/6 72/8
83/23 84/5 84/13
88/12 93/18 103/3
103/19 105/17

108/10 110/19
115/4 115/13
116/14 116/21
119/3 123/14
123/18 126/14
132/10
nobody [2] 33/19
36/10
noncustodial [5]
19/14 93/1 96/10
97/8 97/10
none [2] 13/17 18/3
North [4] 83/8
83/10 100/14 101/2
not [116] 5/16 6/12
8/5 8/13 9/9 10/22
13/1 13/5 17/18
19/4 19/7 20/2 21/4
22/11 22/12 23/5
24/16 25/2 26/7
27/3 27/8 27/11
30/21 33/23 34/1
37/14 39/6 42/9
44/13 45/9 45/11
45/15 49/15 49/20
49/21 49/22 51/15
51/18 51/22 55/22
56/15 57/14 58/18
59/4 59/6 59/16
61/2 62/3 63/9 63/9
65/16 66/4 67/17
68/7 68/17 69/21

70/1 70/6 70/16
70/17 72/21 73/20
78/14 79/8 80/6
80/8 81/20 83/3
83/15 84/9 85/3
85/13 85/23 86/2
86/3 86/4 86/10
86/18 87/8 88/18
91/2 91/11 92/15
93/21 95/16 96/2
96/2 96/9 96/10
96/14 97/2 97/5
97/10 98/5 100/21
102/16 102/18
104/18 104/20
104/22 105/8
105/10 105/15
107/21 109/1
110/14 111/5
113/18 113/21
115/12 116/12
117/8 121/11
123/20 127/13
129/23

Notary [1] 132/11
note [1] 13/19
note-taking [1]
13/19

noted [1] 126/18
nothing [1] 107/15
notice [7] 12/10
12/13 22/20 28/14




N

notice... [3] 29/5
41/12 51/5
noticed [1] 17/3
notices [1] 50/11
noticing [1] 116/10
now [44] 16/15
19/1 24/2 32/19
34/22 35/17 39/13
42/4 42/7 44/8
46/20 53/20 58/4
59/21 60/2 62/21
65/13 68/10 69/22
73/23 74/16 75/9
76/477/4 77/11
82/15 83/20 85/10
86/1 86/15 86/22
90/4 90/23 93/13
94/3 97/18 103/17
106/17 112/6
115/23 116/7
118/18 121/21
128/3
nuance [1] 114/22
nuanced [1] 114/5
number [10] 5/19
13/17 21/12 28/15
62/7 83/6 86/21
91/1 104/1 132/3
number-oriented
[1] 5/19
numbers [7] 34/6

87/1 97/21 105/7
105/12 113/11
124/2

O

o'clock [2] 115/21
117/18
obligated [8] 21/1
26/13 38/17 54/14
83/5 88/15 88/23
90/19
obligation [10] 19/7
20/20 27/9 36/19
36/21 37/1 37/7
37/9 42/9 72/18
obligations [1]
70/16
obligee [5] 17/7
30/16 30/23 31/12
31/14
obligor [10] 17/6
30/15 30/23 31/14
34/23 37/19 85/17
88/2 88/9 93/9
obligors [1] 27/2
obscured [1] 18/9
obviously [7] 21/7
24/23 67/16 81/1
84/2 86/16 127/2
occur [1] 19/19
occurred [1]
108/16
occurs [1] 109/14

October [12]
115/20 116/1 116/8
116/11 116/18
116/20 117/1 118/2
120/1 120/16
128/23 129/11
October 20th [1]
116/1

October 21st [2]
116/18 116/20

off [3] 87/3 119/4
119/5

offer [1] 82/2
office [7] 2/9 3/19
12/16 13/4 27/22
28/18 29/7

Officer [1] 12/15
official [1] 19/4
offset [1] 126/8
often [1] 96/9

Oh [4] 35/14 62/15
67/16 119/5

okay [47] 11/111/2
13/6 14/16 15/12
15/15 16/2 18/2
33/7 39/3 39/5
45/17 52/23 61/18
62/5 62/12 62/17
63/6 64/11 64/20
65/2 65/8 65/15
66/7 67/7 72/14
83/17 87/17 93/18




O

okay... [18] 103/20
105/16 106/5 108/9
115/10 115/14
116/6 117/10
117/19 118/1 118/2
118/9 118/21 119/6
119/19 121/1 122/5
125/22

once [2] 6/7 113/10
one [66] 13/18 17/3
18/19 20/17 20/18
26/23 28/2 30/12
30/22 31/5 31/18
32/4 34/23 38/2
38/15 39/7 40/23
41/22 42/3 51/19
51/21 53/1 53/7
53/16 56/21 56/23
59/23 60/15 61/14
62/1 63/2 63/5 65/3
66/8 68/11 71/8
71/22 73/7 74/2
76/12 77/17 81/7
84/20 86/14 92/8
96/23 101/4 101/5
101/21 104/6 105/3
105/8 105/21 108/6
109/5 109/13 110/6
110/7 110/13
111/11 111/14
114/11 114/18

116/17 122/19
127/13
ones [7] 49/18
51/16 70/18 78/12
105/21 110/14
114/17
online [1] 78/17
only [32] 20/11
22/2 24/8 26/23
33/7 36/18 37/6
37/8 38/15 42/9
45/5 49/9 53/3 53/6
53/10 54/14 57/10
61/1 70/13 71/7
72/21 73/20 78/12
79/16 87/9 88/8
88/14 88/15 88/23
93/8 114/11 114/15
ons [3] 19/8 36/21
42/10
open [1] 64/1
operate [1] 111/18
operating [1] 95/20
opinion [1] 58/21
opportunity [1]
13/13
opposed [5] 5/23
15/7 35/4 44/20
105/23
opposition [2]
15/10 64/21
option [6] 39/8

40/18 41/23 46/15
46/17 113/2
options [2] 40/8
47/14

oral [1] 67/1
order [34] 11/14
20/15 23/13 23/22
32/15 41/8 42/23
44/11 45/3 50/18
51/16 53/22 54/4
54/12 54/16 56/16
57/2 57/10 71/7
71/18 71/20 88/16
90/2 90/21 90/21
97/6 102/13 123/12
123/16 124/22
125/6 125/9 126/6
126/7

orders [3] 53/16
99/1 102/3
Oregon [3] 17/11
17/12 17/14
organize [1] 67/3
oriented [1] 5/19
ORIGINAL [1]
1/11
other [33] 3/10
15/18 29/18 29/20
31/11 38/3 39/23
44/1 49/18 51/16
53/12 54/23 66/7
66/9 66/10 76/12




O

other... [17] 100/21
104/8 107/6 108/17
109/13 110/8
110/23 116/16
116/17 120/3
120/23 126/12
127/14 128/17
131/15 131/18
131/20

otherwise [1]
129/21

our [33] 5/7 6/4 6/5
11/10 13/8 13/18
15/19 16/3 23/18
28/4 69/4 81/10
81/15 84/2 97/17
98/20 105/6 105/9
105/10 106/6
108/23 109/5 110/3
110/14 115/7
115/15 119/12
122/15 122/18
122/21 123/12
123/17 132/5

out [44] 5/5 18/17
23/1 26/14 27/4
29/2 32/13 32/16
36/2 38/7 39/14
41/4 41/18 43/13
43/16 44/5 55/14
60/12 67/15 68/2

71/4 71/9 71/10
72/2 72/4 89/4
91/16 91/16 92/9
98/14 99/22 100/20
101/11 101/15
114/16 118/7
118/10 118/13
120/1 120/21
125/11 125/23
129/12 129/18
outcome [1] 94/13
outlays [5] 74/17
75/10 76/4 76/11
77/20
outside [2] 39/21
99/18
over [6] 15/23
55/18 58/6 103/6
109/1 114/18
over-thinking [1]
55/18
overlay [1] 109/16
override [1] 96/20
overstating [1]
77/10
overtalk [1] 103/1
owe [1] 20/18
owes [1] 42/4
own [1] 17/2
ownership [1]
78/19

P

P.M [1] 130/12
packet [2] 27/4
27/5

packets [1] 26/13
page [11] 17/13
18/3 39/7 46/18
47/17 53/2 55/4
67/12 72/14 80/22
81/5

pages [1] 131/13
paid [6] 49/3 53/14
55/16 106/9 109/8
113/13

pair [1] 48/18
pairs [1] 47/23
Palmer [3] 7/3
31/21 125/20
paper [1] 93/7
paperwork [1]
50/10

parent [41] 17/15
17/18 17/19 19/14
21/17 22/4 26/13
31/19 38/10 38/18
40/20 48/3 54/22
55/10 56/13 60/15
61/15 81/13 82/5
85/4 85/6 85/22
86/9 86/13 88/7
88/15 89/1 90/19
91/7 91/13 92/6




P

parent... [10] 92/19
93/1 93/10 93/20
94/4 94/23 96/10
97/1 97/10 99/4
parent's [9] 18/23
21/2 48/4 54/15
61/2 83/6 83/8 90/7
91/8
parenting [7] 16/17
60/13 60/18 61/1
109/17 110/1 112/2
parents [33] 25/3
30/9 31/6 33/9
34/19 36/3 38/6
38/7 40/6 46/4 46/6
54/7 77/3 79/9 82/9
82/14 85/17 87/11
87/21 88/1 90/2
92/8 92/23 96/6
99/11 101/23 107/9
109/23 114/7
114/10 114/14
120/11 121/17
parents' [1] 53/8
part [9] 9/18 19/20
30/17 93/6 106/18
110/1 114/9 118/14
124/10
participate [4] 13/9
25/21 93/2 129/22
participation [2]

25/23 128/22
particular [1]
28/20
particularly [10]
5/16 26/19 27/1
56/18 59/3 68/5
74/8 77/23 89/6
110/10

parties [7] 24/9
30/11 30/19 30/20
31/3 37/18 37/20
partly [2] 49/23
53/15

party [6] 23/20
30/12 31/11 35/6
35/7 96/13

past [4] 58/4 59/12
63/7 107/12

path [2] 60/12
114/20

pay [14] 37/9 48/12
52/18 52/18 56/11
85/18 89/1 104/12
104/19 106/4
113/17 113/19
113/20 130/4
payable [1] 50/22
paying [11] 33/18
38/10 53/10 85/19
91/15 91/17 91/20
91/21 92/9 113/18
113/21

payment [6] 25/23
37/15 53/4 57/8
76/7 76/18
payments [2] 49/10
49/11
penalized [1] 95/16
Pennsylvania [1]
35/18
PENNY [13] 2/6
10/17 15/2 16/5
30/4 80/19 82/2
84/19 90/8 98/15
103/1 117/3 128/1
Penny's [1] 99/15
people [30] 10/23
11/2 11/3 15/5 28/7
33/17 34/2 34/6
43/7 58/15 59/4
61/22 62/1 65/16
74/12 84/7 86/21
98/10 103/12 106/4
109/8 109/11
113/17 113/18
113/20 119/7
124/12 127/3 127/9
129/14
people's [1] 127/18
per [2] 34/14 74/19
percentage [7] 29/6
51/10 51/14 86/19
93/6 93/13 93/16
percentages [2] 6/2




P

percentages... [1]
84/1

perfect [3] 16/23
57/21 98/1
perhaps [S] 31/5
86/9 94/5 104/21
120/13

person [11] 13/10
22/23 23/10 23/14
41/4 62/6 63/5
65/11 95/17 100/9
105/3

personal [2] 78/13
78/20

personally [1]
31/13

persons [3] 131/15
131/18 131/20
perspective [1]
105/12

persuade [1] 66/9
phases [3] 71/4
72/2 72/4

phone [3] 5/17
28/15 78/13
phones [1] 78/20
physically [1] 15/8
picture [1] 108/6
place [1] 114/19
places [2] 39/12
41/13

plain [1] 50/23
plaintiff [2] 16/12
38/14

plateaued [1] 70/3
please [3] 103/18
119/23 129/22
plunge [1] 17/22
plunging [1] 16/9
plus [1] 36/21
pocket [2] 91/16
91/16

point [26] 10/21
13/12 15/17 22/9
23/18 27/17 27/18
29/6 29/11 29/13
30/7 40/4 40/5
57/19 63/12 65/20
66/1 95/15 99/14
99/15 103/3 104/20
105/14 107/13
114/13 116/11
pointed [1] 114/16
policy [5] 2/3 9/19
35/3 80/6 126/5
poll [1] 115/17
polled [1] 116/1
populate [1] 38/15
posed [1] 129/9
positioned [1]
80/15

positive [1] 46/4
possibility [1] 34/7

possible [1] 59/2
post [1] 69/18
post-COVID [1]
69/18

potentially [1]
119/9
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104/2 107/13
107/22 120/18
127/5 128/3 130/3
thank [43] 7/2 7/12
7/15 7/22 8/10 8/16
8/19 9/1 9/12 9/15
10/1 10/3 10/10
10/16 10/18 12/7
13/6 13/7 14/3 14/7
14/16 14/22 15/4
15/5 15/16 16/4
16/6 38/20 45/17
61/15 62/15 62/17
63/19 63/23 64/12
64/13 108/21
126/10 126/16
127/22 128/7




T

thank... [2] 128/20
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15/13 21/9 21/15
27/16 31/22 33/12
34/4 34/7 37/6 40/3
41/18 42/13 42/20
48/15 48/18 48/19
49/11 50/20 51/15
52/1 53/15 57/7
57/11 59/13 60/2
62/8 62/10 62/12
63/4 67/20 71/10
71/18 72/3 72/11
73/10 73/11 74/2
74/14 75/16 76/11
76/20 80/6 81/4
81/21 82/16 86/7
86/14 93/7 93/18
94/7 94/21 95/1
95/7 96/11 97/1
97/16 97/17 102/7
105/16 106/10
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117/10 120/13
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124/11 127/7
127/12 128/15

their [41] 5/5 11/23
17/15 18/23 22/4
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32/6 32/10 32/10
32/18 33/18 36/12
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26/19 27/3 48/1
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66/9 87/10 95/11
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89/8 98/19
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32/9 95/12
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unless [4] 15/17
24/17 82/19 113/7
until [3] 69/10
93/22 118/20
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15/14 23/21 40/5
42/7 42/23 43/10
44/1 50/21 54/13
56/21 57/21 64/1
68/17 68/19 68/19
69/5 71/21 71/23
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80/21 85/9 90/2
94/7 94/8 97/11
97/13 98/13 98/17
99/16 100/7 100/12
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102/20 102/21
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114/9 118/22 120/1
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94/17 112/14
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106/12 108/4
108/14 108/19
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116/13 118/3
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78/10 94/15 94/17
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users [1] 44/16

using [9] 55/13
70/23 74/17 74/19
77/18 94/14 100/17
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usual [2] 84/3
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29/13 99/15 99/15
value [1] 75/22
variable [2] 26/4
51/14
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varies [1] 51/9
vary [2] 26/11
26/16
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9/16 15/23 63/10
87/21 101/19
106/10 107/17
108/6 108/13
108/16 109/15
115/6 120/14 122/6
123/5 123/6 123/11

verbally [3] 14/19
64/17 65/12

verifies [1] 82/7

Vermont [1] 46/1

versus [4] 63/15
90/21 109/3 122/11

very [22] 5/6 15/5
19/9 19/9 19/14
20/2 27/3 29/12
40/3 40/5 40/5 46/3
48/5 49/15 59/5
70/18 107/11 121/9
127/3 127/7 127/7
127/10

via [3] 1/18 12/16
131/15
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videoconference [2]
1/19 11/16

videoconferencing
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view [2] 61/579/8

views [1] 84/8

Virginia [1] 35/18
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virtually [1] 61/14
visibility [1] 56/14
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14/10 64/11 116/12
visualization [1]
14/12

visually [3] 14/17
64/15 88/18

voices [1] 5/16
volunteer [1] 130/2
vote [14] 19/5 63/8
63/9 64/3 64/4
64/15 64/17 65/5
65/10 122/19 123/7
123/9 124/6 129/13
voted [4] 66/8
66/17 66/18 105/22
votes [3] 122/15
122/16 122/18
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48/2 48/9 50/15
50/16 82/8 82/13
85/16 89/10 90/1
91/19 94/11 95/1
97/3 97120 97/23
98/2 98/9 98/18
99/2 100/8 100/18
101/5 101/23 109/7
111/10 111/19
113/1 114/4
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waged [1] 31/4
wages [3] 48/12
69/15 69/15
wait [2] 70/9
111/16
want [39] 5/1 5/7
15/19 30/2 44/12
44/13 45/3 45/23
47/15 57/18 57/19
60/14 61/6 62/23
66/9 66/17 66/21
66/23 67/3 67/3
87/10 89/21 94/10
94/12 94/20 95/3
102/14 105/15
108/8 110/9 112/13
113/17 120/19
121/4 122/3 122/23
123/2 124/7 126/15
wanted [4] 43/7
58/12 61/23 92/16
wanting [3] 58/6
65/12 109/11
wants [2] 61/7
129/5
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was [77] 1/16 12/14
17/13 22/17 22/18
23/8 23/17 27/21
28/8 28/17 28/20
28/21 28/22 29/1

29/2 29/4 29/8 30/8
31/9 40/18 40/20
49/3 49/6 49/9
51/18 52/20 53/7
53/8 54/11 54/20
55/16 58/3 58/7
58/19 68/3 68/11
68/12 68/13 71/19
73/22 75/6 75/18
80/20 81/3 81/11
85/15 85/18 85/19
85/20 88/5 88/6
90/8 91/5 92/17
96/16 98/3 98/15
99/8 105/21 108/4
109/6 113/8 113/10
116/17 117/14
118/6 122/19 123/7
123/9 124/20
124/23 125/2 125/4
125/17 125/21
126/4 128/4
wasn't [6] 53/5
54/18 85/14 94/2
105/2 125/17
wave [1] 5/9
way [33] 6/1 11/18
24/14 27/13 28/2
30/6 32/8 34/11
35/1 35/15 39/6
41/18 54/8 57/17
65/23 66/8 71/9

74/21 83/9 84/21
85/5 85/19 85/20
87/7 87/13 95/19
105/10 107/19
109/8 110/7 120/8
124/16 129/11
ways [3] 41/16
107/18 109/12

we [300]

we'll [1] 123/21
we're [3] 59/4
86/10 125/6
Wednesday [1]
12/20

week [7] 59/17 97/4
97/5 98/5 98/5 99/5
99/6

weeks [4] 115/17
128/5 128/14
128/16

welcome [5] 5/2
13/10 121/8 121/13
121/20

well [28] 4/5 15/15
18/2 24/22 30/13
32/20 33/7 37/14
43/11 44/23 46/13
60/3 60/11 63/6
65/15 66/2 66/4
80/15 88/12 95/8
110/20 115/10
116/4 118/8 122/14
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well... [3] 125/4
125/22 128/20
well-positioned [1]
80/15
Weller [1] 9/7
went [5] 42/5 49/1
68/19 77/19 99/8
were [33] 17/8
28/22 28/23 29/7
33/17 33/19 36/20
43/7 53/4 53/18
74/13 74/19 75/20
77/3 77/10 78/11
79/12 79/13 79/15
80/3 82/12 85/12
86/4 86/5 87/17
98/22 114/6 125/2
125/12 125/13
125/15 126/11
129/9
weren't [2] 53/11
74/13
West [1] 35/18
what [93] 16/22
17/15 18/11 20/1
26/2 26/12 26/20
27/7 28/8 29/4
29/18 30/9 32/6
32/20 32/21 33/18
34/12 36/13 40/18
41/17 43/4 45/15

45/19 47/14 48/9
48/10 48/12 49/18
51/11 51/16 55/16
55/19 56/2 57/6
57/19 60/15 61/9
63/7 70/23 75/5
75/9 75/15 75/18
76/4 77/2 77/8
77/13 80/1 80/11
82/6 82/17 82/21
83/2 83/19 85/14
85/17 85/18 86/3
86/5 88/4 88/5
88/23 89/1 92/9
94/1 94/2 94/9
94/12 98/3 98/12
98/14 98/22 100/16
104/13 105/2 106/6
106/7 106/12
107/22 108/7
110/22 112/5
112/15 113/13
114/22 114/23
115/6 120/14
120/18 122/9
124/10 125/6
129/13

what's [6] 18/21
44/15 45/6 45/7
111/9 122/7
whatever [6] 35/7
44/12 45/3 75/23

80/15 99/8
wheels [1] 45/19
when [44] 5/12

13/8 15/4 19/3 23/8
37/15 39/10 40/6
41/21 43/16 51/6
52/15 54/3 54/6
57/3 63/1 69/13
69/13 69/14 70/10
71/12 74/22 79/5
81/17 81/19 88/17
89/3 89/20 89/21
89/23 90/16 90/16
91/5 91/9 92/22
93/4 96/13 99/1

113/1 114/22

115/14 124/22

125/12 129/3
where [54] 11/5

18/4 18/12 20/14
20/21 21/18 21/20
22/1 22/9 22/18
23/10 23/20 25/5
32/14 33/16 38/13
40/12 40/19 44/21
45/10 46/16 47/9
49/15 53/6 53/8
56/12 57/19 58/17
59/3 60/2 60/20
69/23 70/8 70/21
86/8 86/11 89/10
90/8 90/9 90/17
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where... [14] 91/8
92/4 96/7 96/11
99/13 100/21 101/4
101/21 104/11
106/16 114/1
114/10 124/23
126/8
whereas [1] 31/11
whether [16] 24/7
27/11 29/20 30/14
36/4 40/21 45/6
66/13 68/23 85/3
85/13 101/16
102/12 114/2 114/8
122/12
which [34] 5/12
18/4 23/4 24/1 24/3
25/5 29/2 30/22
38/3 40/9 48/1 48/5
48/22 50/6 51/2
51/16 52/2 52/5
52/6 52/16 55/3
60/19 74/18 77/12
77/20 79/18 79/20
82/11 90/3 98/1
100/10 100/18
106/4 122/19
while [3] 70/8
102/21 110/3
Whitmire [1] 7/16
who [21] 9/18

14/17 24/21 38/10
39/14 55/19 59/4
65/4 65/10 66/16
66/18 78/12 87/9
92/19 95/17 103/16
105/21 113/17
114/5 116/18
121/10
who's [1] 32/19
whoever [2] 88/1
95/15
whole [4] 54/11
98/12 112/14 113/6
whomever [1]
17/16
why [5] 51/15
97/17 104/9 106/10
110/4
wife [1] 127/10
will [40] 5/10 6/19
14/6 15/8 18/19
20/16 23/22 23/23
25/11 25/13 26/15
38/12 38/23 39/4
53/18 63/17 63/21
64/1 64/3 65/20
67/8 67/9 70/11
72/17 95/15 102/10
102/19 102/21
103/16 105/12
113/3 119/8 119/15
119/23 121/2

123/20 129/1 129/5
129/6 129/17
WILSON [2] 3/15
9/13

wind [1] 111/1
winds [1] 42/7
Wisconsin [5]
24/14 25/13 26/2
26/6 40/19
withholding [2]
50/14 89/11

within [5] 35/7
59/20 61/14 101/8
122/13
without [10] 14/12
32/12 33/2 40/14
43/5 65/22 80/14
85/7 108/5 128/10
won't [3] 30/22
69/9 85/1
wondered [1] 102/7
wonderful [1]
100/2
wondering [1] 23/9
word [2] 18/16 23/2
work [13] 26/20
50/21 51/12 57/5
57/6 70/1 88/10
100/22 118/17
120/5 120/19
124/21 125/9
worked [2] 44/5




W

worked... [1]
108/11

worker [8] 32/9
32/22 32/22 39/16
39/19 40/10 40/13
59/8

workers [3] 25/8
26/10 46/12
working [7] 48/16
65/4 91/19 97/2
97/5 103/9 119/21
works [2] 18/6
19/15

worksheet [43]
15/20 17/14 17/17
17/22 18/5 18/15
18/18 18/21 30/8
35/17 36/6 36/7
36/14 36/17 37/17
38/5 51/13 51/22
54/4 54/17 55/9
56/9 57/13 58/4
58/10 58/17 63/16
64/9 84/10 88/17
88/20 105/23 107/7
108/4 108/10
108/18 109/3
109/20 109/21
111/5 111/21
122/11 124/4
world [4] 25/5 28/5

39/22 40/2
worried [2] 70/6
107/10

would [151]
wouldn't [10] 21/8
23/1 34/12 41/5
76/3 80/7 83/11
83/12 90/17 118/17
wrap [1] 111/8
write [1] 66/23
writing [1] 67/1
written [4] 12/19
13/2 13/11 121/13

Y

y'all [3] 121/1
128/20 130/5

yard [1] 127/20
yeah [12] 11/22
15/3 35/20 46/19
48/15 72/14 100/13
101/1 102/20 115/9
125/4 128/18

year [5] 68/14 99/6
126/22 128/11
132/4

years [2] 86/6
111/17

yellow [2] 49/1
70/20
yellow-shaded [1]
70/20

yes [17] 6/6 11/13

12/5 12/12 24/14
32/2 38/20 39/10
49/15 61/16 88/12
92/12 105/5 117/12
117/16 118/15
121/5

yes/no [1] 39/10
yesterday [1] 68/2
yet [2] 8/14 9/10
you [421]

you be [1] 90/16
you're [11] 16/12
16/22 57/10 64/11
66/5 92/7 92/10
96/11 102/12 105/8
114/23

you've [1] 69/23
you-all [1] 68/9
your [36] 6/7 6/9
14/10 14/11 15/8
16/19 17/1 18/14
18/17 18/20 27/2
27/15 29/11 33/2
41/18 46/13 64/10
64/16 64/21 66/9
67/2 67/4 82/19
94/13 95/4 102/15
103/18 104/20
105/13 112/22
114/13 116/12
117/14 117/20
120/6 124/17




Y

yourself [2] 5/13
14/19

Z

zero [S] 49/3 83/8
90/8 91/9 124/22
Zoom [5] 8/512/22
13/9 29/10 131/15




